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Informe de Ejercicio 2016

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS FOR 2017
(Thousand euro)

1.

General Information

Volkswagen Navarra, S.A. was incorporated on 22 December 1993 under the name Fábrica Navarra de
Automóviles S.A. through the non-cash contribution of the line of business of SEAT, S.A. at its factory
in Arazuri (Navarra). It availed itself of Law 29/1991 and started up its activities on 1 January 1994.
The Company’s objects consist of:



The manufacture, marketing, import and export of cars, car parts, spare parts and accessories
and machinery and the capital goods to manufacture all of them.
The provision of technical assistance and complementary services to suppliers, importers,
dealers, customers and Group companies.

The Company is registered at the Mercantile Registry as a single shareholder company.
Sale of vehicles manufactured by Volkswagen Navarra, S.A. is handled by Volkswagen Group España
Distribución and Volkswagen AG.

2. Basis of presentation
a)

True and fair view

The annual accounts have been prepared on the basis of the Company’s accounting records and are
presented in accordance with prevailing commercial legislation and the provisions of the Chart of
Accounts approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007 as amended by Royal Decree 1159/2010 and Royal
Decree 602/2016 so as to present fairly the Company’s equity, financial position and results and
accurately reflect cash flow in the cash flow statement.
b)

Critical measurement issues and estimates of uncertainty

The preparation of the annual accounts requires the Company to make estimates and judgements
concerning the future. These are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
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other factors, including expectations concerning future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.
The resulting accounting estimates, by definition, rarely equal real results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.
Useful lives of facilities
Company management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the projected life cycles of the assets. These could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations in response to severe changes in industry
cycles. Management will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated and write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.
Where the assets relate directly to production of a specific model and may not be reused in the next,
the Company depreciates them over the useful life of that model such that if the life of the model is
less than the estimated life of the asset, depreciation is adjusted in the remaining periods in order to
ensure that they agree.
Recoverability of tax credits
Company management estimates annually, on the basis of its business plan, the recoverability of tax
credits in respect of deductions and temporary differences within the prescription periods of such
assets. This estimate could change as a result of the development of the Company's results, actions
by competitors, economic cycles or other factors. The Company recognizes a corporate income tax
charge in the year in which the business plan does not permit the recovery of the tax credits
recognized.

c)

Aggregation

For clarity, the items presented in the balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in
equity and cash flow statement are grouped together and, where necessary, a breakdown is included
in the relevant notes to the accounts.
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3. Accounting policies
3.1. Intangible assets
a)

Computer applications

Software licenses acquired are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred in their acquisition and
preparation for the use of the specific program. These costs are amortized over the assets’ estimated
useful lives (3 years).
Expenses associated with software maintenance are recognized when incurred.

3.2. Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is carried at acquisition price or production cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses recognised. The assets contributed by SEAT, S.A. In
1993 are recognised at their contribution price.
Property, plant and equipment included prior to 31 December 1996 is measured at acquisition price,
restated in accordance with Provincial Law 23/1996, in no event exceed market value. Own work
capitalised is calculated by adding to the price of the consumable materials used the direct or indirect
costs attributable to the assets.
Costs incurred to extend, modernise or improve property, plant and equipment are only recognised as
an increase in the value of the asset when the capacity, productivity or useful life of the asset is
extended and it is possible to ascertain or estimate the carrying amount of the assets that have been
replaced in inventories.
The cost of major repairs is capitalised and depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset,
while recurring maintenance costs are charged to the income statement in the year in which they are
incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated systematically using the straight-line
method over the assets’ estimated useful lives based on the actual decline in value brought about by
operation, use and possession, or following the declining balance method. Estimated useful lives are
mainly as follows:
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Estimated
years of useful
life
33
6-8
5 - 10
5 - 10
4-5
5

Buildings
Plant
Machinery and tooling
Furnishings
Data- processing equipment
Vehicles

The residual values and useful lives of assets are reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, at each balance
sheet date.
If an asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, its carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount (Note 3.4).
Gains and losses on the sale of property, plant and equipment are calculated by comparing the
revenue obtained with the carrying amount and are recognized in the income statement.

3.3. Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of fixed assets that require
more than one year to be ready for use are included in the cost of the assets until they are ready for
use. No amounts were recognised in 2017 2016 for this item.

3.4. Impairment losses on non-financial assets
Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The excess of the carrying amount of an asset over its recoverable
amount, deemed the higher of fair value less costs to sell or value in use, is recognised as an
impairment loss.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Impaired non-financial assets other than
goodwill are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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3.5. Exchanges of assets
Whenever an item of property, plant and equipment, an intangible asset or an investment property is
acquired by means of an exchange having a commercial substance, the asset received is measured at
the fair value of the asset given up, plus any monetary consideration awarded, barring better evidence
supporting the value of the asset received and up to the limit of the latter. The Company considers
that an exchange is commercial in substance when the structure of the cash flows from the asset
received differs from the structure of the cash flows of the asset delivered or the present value of the
after-tax cash flows of the activities affected by the swap are modified. Further, either of the above
differences must also be material in respect of the fair value of the assets exchanged.

If the exchange is not deemed commercial in substance or the fair value of the transaction assets
cannot be reliably determined, the asset received is measured at the carrying amount of the asset
delivered, including any monetary consideration, up to the limit of the fair value of the asset received
if lower and so long as this value can be reliably measured.

3.6. Financial assets
a)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable receipts that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included under current assets, unless maturing in more than
12 months after the balance sheet date, in which case they are recognized under non-current assets.
Loans and receivables are included in “Loans to companies” and “Trade and other receivables” on the
balance sheet.
Financial assets are initially carried at fair value, including transaction costs which are directly
attributable, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Accrued interest is recognized at the
effective interest rate, which is the discount rate that brings the instrument’s carrying amount into
line with all estimated cash flows to maturity. However, trade falling receivables due in less than one
year are carried at their face value at both initial recognition and subsequent measurement, provided
that the effect of not discounting flows is not significant.
At the year-end, at least, the necessary value adjustments are made to account for impairment when
there is objective evidence that all receivables will not be collected.
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Impairment losses are recognized at the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate prevailing at
the initial recognition date. Value adjustments and any subsequent reversals are recognized in the
income statement.
Financial assets are written off when substantially all the risks and rewards attaching to ownership of
the asset are transferred. Specifically in relation to accounts receivable, this transfer is generally
deemed to take place when the risks of insolvency and non-payment have been transferred.

3.7. Financial derivatives and hedge accounting
Financial derivatives are measured at fair value upon initial recognition and for subsequent
measurement purposes. Resulting gains and losses are recognised depending on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument or not and, if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Company does not have and did not have any financial derivatives in 2016 or 2015.

3.8. Inventories
a)

Raw materials, other consumables, trade and work in progress and semi-finished goods

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. When the net realisable value of
inventories is less than cost, the appropriate adjustments are made and recognised as an expense in
the income statement. If the circumstances that caused the impairment no longer exist, the provision
is reversed and recognised as income on the income statement.
Las materias primas y los bienes adquiridos por la empresa destinados a la venta sin transformación
se valoran a su coste de adquisición, mediante la aplicación del método FIFO (primera entrada,
primera salida).
Raw materials and assets acquired by the company for sale without transformation are carried at
acquisition cost, using FIFO (First In First Out).
Work in progress, manufactured vehicles and spare parts manufactured by the company itself are
carried at the cost of the raw materials, as per the method described above, plus labour costs and
other direct and indirect manufacturing costs included in the production process.
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b)

Greenhouse gas emission allowances

For the years beginning on or after 1 January 2016 all greenhouse gas emission allowances acquired,
both those allowances to be used to cancel obligations and those held for sale are classified as
inventories whereas previously they were included in intangible assets as non-amortizable assets.
Note 9 regarding inventories have been broken down to separately disclose those items expected to
be consumed in less and more than one year.
For the year 2017, all the emission allowances have been included with an amount of 449 thousand
euros (2016: 330 thousand euros).

3.9. Equity
Share capital consists of ordinary shares.
The costs of issuing new shares or stock options are recognized directly against equity, as a deduction
from reserves.

3.10.

a)

Financial liabilities

Creditors and payables

This category includes trade and non-trade payables. These liabilities are classified as current
liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months
from the balance sheet date.
These liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, adjusted for directly attributable transaction
costs, and are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the discount rate that brings the instrument’s carrying amount into line with
the expected future flow of payments to the maturity date of the liability.
Nonetheless, trade payables falling due in less than one year that do not carry a contractual interest
rate are carried at their nominal value upon both initial recognition and subsequent measurement,
provided that the effect of not discounting flows is not significant.
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Should any existing liabilities be renegotiated, no substantial modification to financial liabilities is
deemed to exist when the new lender is the same party that granted the initial loan and the present
value of cash flows, including net commissions, does not differ by more than 10% of the present value
of the cash flows pending payment with respect to the original liability calculated using the same
method. There were no renegotiations during the year.

3.11.

Grants received

A grant that is repayable is recognized as a liability until the conditions for qualification as a nonrepayable grant are met. Non-refundable grants are recognized directly in equity and are taken to
profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognizes the costs which
the grants are intended to compensate as expenses. Non-repayable grants extended by owners are
recognized directly in equity.
A grant is considered non-repayable when there is an individual grant concession agreement, all the
conditions attaching to the grant have been met and there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received.
Monetary grants are carried at the fair value of the amount granted and non-monetary grants are
carried at the fair value of the asset received, at the recognition date in both cases.

Non-repayable grants relating to the acquisition of intangible assets or property, plant and
equipment, are recognized as income in the year in proportion to the depreciation/amortization of the
assets concerned or, if appropriate, when the assets are sold, restated due to impairment or written
off from the balance sheet. Non-repayable grants related to specific expenses are recognized in the
income statement in the same year as the relevant expenses accrue. Those granted to offset
operating losses are recognized in the year they are granted, unless they are earmarked to offset
future operating losses, in which case they are recognized in the years the losses are realized.

3.12.

Current and deferred tax

Since 1998 the Company has been taxed under the corporate income tax consolidation regime as part
of the SEAT Group, parented by SEAT, S.A.
Income tax expense is that amount of income tax that accrues during the period. It includes both the
current and deferred tax expense.
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Both current and deferred tax expense are recognized in the income statement. However, the tax
effects of items recognized directly with a credit or charge to equity are also recognized in equity.
Current tax liabilities are measured at the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities, using
the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date.
Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. However, if the deferred taxes arise from
the initial recognition of a liability or an asset on a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction has no effect on the tax or accounting gain or loss, they are not
recognized. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax assets are recognized insofar as future tax profits will probably arise against which to
offset the temporary differences with a 10 year limit.

3.13.
a)

Employee benefits

Other post-employment obligations

The Company offers healthcare insurance to pre-retired managers and life insurance to all pre-retired
employees from the time they take pre-retirement up to their official retirement age.
The expected costs of these benefits accrue at the time of pre-retirement.
b)

Termination benefits

The Company recognizes termination benefits when it has demonstrably undertaken to make workers
redundant in accordance with a detailed formal plan which cannot be withdrawn or to provide
termination benefits as a result of an offer to encourage employees to take up voluntary redundancy.
Benefits not falling due within 12 months of the balance sheet date are discounted to present value.
c)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Company recognizes a liability and a cost for bonuses and the attainment of objectives. As a
result, it recognizes a provision when it is contractually obligated or when past practice has generated
a constructive obligation.
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3.14.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognized when
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, an outflow of
funds will probably be necessary to settle the obligation, and the amount may be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the payments for long-term items provided that the
effect is material. Adjustments to the provision due to restatements are recognized as a financial
expense as they accrue.
Provisions maturing in one year or less with no significant financial effect are not discounted.
When some of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, the reimbursement is recognized separately when, and only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received.
Contingent liabilities are considered to be potential liabilities deriving from past events, the existence
of which is subject to the occurrence of one or more future events that are beyond the Company's
control. These contingent liabilities are not recognized in the accounts but are described in the notes.

3.15.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods delivered and services rendered in the ordinary course of the Company’s activities, net of
returns, rebates, discounts and VAT.
The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and
the specific conditions applicable to each of its activities are met.
a)

Sales of goods

The Company manufactures and sells cars, parts and accessories.
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The Company invoices to VW AG and Volkswagen Group España Distribución all cars under the costplus agreements (Note 28) established by the Group at the time the cars are delivered to sales, at such
time the risks and rewards are transferred to said entities and the corresponding income is reflected,
taking into account the established “cost-plus” margin. At the end of 2017 the Company commenced
the supply of vehicles in SKD (Semi Knocked Down) format which are invoiced to VW AG under similar
economic conditions as the complete vehicles.
b)

Interest income

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Company reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on loans that have become impaired is recognized using
the effective interest method.

3.16.
a)

Leases

Operating leases

Leases under which the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards inherent to ownership of
the asset are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

3.17.
a)

Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in thousand euro, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
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settlement of these transactions and translation at the year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are recognized in the income statement.

3.18.

Related-party transactions

As a general rule, intragroup transactions are initially recognized at fair value. When the agreed price
differs from fair value, the difference is recognized based on the economic reality of the transaction.
Subsequent measurement follows prevailing accounting standards.

3.19.

Environmental disclosures

Assets acquired by the Company to improve and protect the environment are recognized in full as
property, plant and equipment while training and information actions and repair and maintenance
services connected with such assets are taken to the income statement when they take place.

4. Management of financial risk
4.1. Financial risk factors
The Company is exposed to various types of financial risk: market risk (including exchange rate risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Risk management is controlled by the Treasury Department of VIB (formerly named VGS). in
accordance with the Volkswagen Group’s policies.

a)

Market Risk
i)

Exchange rate risk

The Company operates internationally and is therefore exposed to the exchange rate risk on
foreign currency transactions, particularly, US dollar, yen, South Korean won, Yuan, South
African rand and Czech koruna. The exchange rate risk results from purchases and liability
operations. At 31 December the Company’s exchange rate risk is not significant.
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The Company does not carry out hedging operations. The exchange rate management policy is
drawn up at the level of the Volkswagen Group.
ii)

Price risk

The Company is not exposed to equity instrument price risk because the investments held by
the Company do not correspond to investments available for sale or carried at fair value
through profit or loss. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk.
iii)

Interest rate and fair value cash flow risk

Revenues and cash flows from operating activities are independent of fluctuations in market
interest rates.
The Company's interest rate risk derives mainly from the centralised treasury cash account and
short-term deposits recognised in cash equivalents and short-term investments.
At 31 December 2017 if interest rates on the centralised treasury account had been 10 bp
higher /lower and all other variables had remained constant, profits before tax would not have
varied significantly.
b)

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and receivables.
Management does not expect any impairment losses to arise since most balances are recognised with
Volkswagen Group companies, ensuring collection of the receivables. In the case of loans to no Group
companies, generally relating to supplier charges, the Company analyses and establishes the relevant
provision, following an itemised follow-up (100% for balances which are more than 1 year old).

c)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities,
availability of funding through sufficient committed credit facilities, and the ability to close out
market positions.
The Company carries out on a centralized basis, in the Group to which it belongs, a follow-up of the
Company’s liquidity reserve (including draw-downs on credit and cash and equivalents) (Note 10) on
the basis of expected cash flows. Based on agreements with the group, any financial need that the
company may have in the normal course of business, including the coverage of the negative working
capital as of December 31, 2017 as a result of the company's investment effort in that year (Note 6),
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would be covered by the group, in accordance with the financial agreements entered into or by
establishing the necessary mechanisms.
In April 2017, two contracts were signed with VIB (previously called VGS) to cover the financing needs
foreseen for the coming years as a result of the investment plan, materializing in the availability of an
overdraft in the line of credit with a limit of 35 million of euros and group loans with a limit of 130
million euros

4.2. Fair value measurement
The carrying amounts of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values.
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Company for similar
financial instruments.

5. Intangible assets
Set out in Appendix I is a breakdown of intangible assets.
a)

Fully-amortised intangible assets

At 31 December 2017 there are fully-amortised intangible assets still in use with a cost value of
€33,291 thousand (previous year: €30,114 thousand).
b)

Insurance

The Company has taken out a number of insurance policies to cover risks relating to intangible fixed
assets. The coverage provided by these policies is considered to be sufficient.

6. Property, plant and equipment
The breakdown of items included under Property, plant and equipment is detailed in Appendix 1.
Additions to property, plant and equipment are due to the new VW270 and the MQB modular
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platform and the VW216 that will start manufacturing from 2019 . The Investment Plan for the
following five years envisages investments amounting to €378,760 thousand. Consequently, the
company's investment plan as of December 31, 2017, amounts to approximately 115 million euros,
which is expected to materialize in 2018 and 2019

a)

Impairment losses

During the present year and in the previous year no significant impairment allowances were
recognized or reversed for any property, plant and equipment.

b)

Non-monetary contribution of SEAT, S.A.

The gross value of the property, plant and equipment initially contributed to the incorporation on 22
December 1993 amounted to €593,120 thousand with accumulated depreciation amounting to
€123,531 thousand, including the transfer of assets under finance lease to property, plant and
equipment in 2002. These gross values included a restatement amounting to €105,269 thousand.
The carrying amount of that restatement at 31 December 2017 totals €70,094 thousand (previous
year: €70,951 thousand) and its effect on the income statement for that year amounted to €857
thousand (previous year: €857 thousand).

c)

Restatements under Royal Decree-Law 7/1996

Net accumulated restatements at the year-end without taking into account the revaluation of the
material goods contributed by SEAT, SA, amount to €7,588 thousand (previous year: €7,988
thousand).
The effect of such restatements on depreciation in the year was an increase of €400 thousand
(previous year: €422 thousand).
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d)

Assets acquired from Group companies and associates

Investments in property, plant and equipment acquired from Group companies and associates during
the year ended 31 December 2017 are summarised below:

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

Fixed assets

Cost

Cost

Intangible fixed assets

662

Land and buildings

1.880

1.271

Plant and machinery

34.122

50.443

Other items of property, plant and
equipment

78.075

908

9.982

114.739

e)

62.604

Property, plant and equipment not used in operations

On 23 December 1997 Volkswagen Navarra, S.A. assigned the use for an indefinite period of 20,230
m2 with a restated cost of €1,159 thousand to Fundación Volkswagen Navarra - Caja de Ahorros de
Navarra. In order to recognize this assignment of use, a provision was recognized for the above
amount.

f)

Fully-depreciated assets

At 31 December 2017 there are fully-depreciated constructions with an original cost of €33,831
thousands ( previous year: €33,431 thousand) still in use. The cost of other fully-depreciated
property, plant and equipment still in use amounts to €898,654 thousand (previous year:
€1,055,031thousand).
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g)

Assets under operating leases

The income statement reflects operating lease expenses amounting to €782 thousand for the lease of
machinery and computer equipment (previous year: €759 thousand) . Such contracts mature
annually.

h)

Grants received

No new grants were received in 2017.

i)

Insurance

The Company has taken out a number of insurance policies to cover risks relating to property, plant
and equipment. The coverage provided by these policies is considered to be sufficient.

j)

Special purpose vehicles

These vehicles are considered inventories as they are held by the company for less than one year on
average and their decline in value is considered inventory depreciation.

7. Financial instruments, assets
7.1. Analysis by categories

carrying amount of each category of financial instruments stipulated in recognition and measurement
standard “Financial instruments” is as follows:
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Thousand euro

Financial assets in 2016

Loans to
employees
Long-term:
- Loans and receivables (Note 8)

8.809
8.809

Trade and
other
receivables

Loans to
employee and
other

60.493

3.586

60.493

3.586

Short-term:
- Loans and receivables (Note 8)

Financial assets in 2017

Thousand euro
Loans to
employees

Long-term:
- Loans and receivables (Note 8)

8.683
8.683

Trade and other
receivables

Loans to
employees and
other

161.903

3.893

161.903

3.893

Short-term:
- Loans and receivables (Note 8)
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7.2. Analysis by maturity
Financial instruments having fixed or determinable maturities are shown below by year of maturity:

Thousand euro
Financial assets in 2017

Other investments:
- Loans and
receivables

2018

2019

2020

2021

Subsequent
years

165.796

180

167

145

165.796

180

167

145

Not
determined

Total

299

7.892

174.9479

299

7.892

174.9479

7.3. Credit quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets which have not yet fallen due and have not suffered impairment
as they relate mainly to accounts with group companies is considered high and at no risk of
impairment.
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8. Loans and receivables
Thousand euro

Thousand euro

2017

2016

791

958

7.892

7.851

Long-term loans and receivables:
- Housing loans to employees
- Loans to employees

8.683

8.809

833

93

159.595

59.038

1.312

1.214

- Loans to employees

306

286

- Provisions and other

(143)

(138)

161.903

60.493

3.893

3.586

174.479

72.888

Short-term loans and receivables:
- Trade receivables
- Accounts receivable from
parties (Note 28)

group companies and related

- Other receivables

Short-term loans:
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Receivables from Group companies and associates include, inter alia:

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

Volkswagen Group España Distribución

2017
26.946

2016
6.180

Volkswagen AG

117.711

30.135

VW of South Africa

6.830

7.154

VW India

7.603

15.172

505

397

159.595

59.038

Other

Investments in group companies and associates include the Company’s cash surpluses, arranged as
deposits in VW Group Services (VIB (formerly named VGS)), with three month maturities. In 2017, no
deposit with a maturity of more than three months has been established. (As of December 31, 2016
there was not either).
The heading relating to personnel, long and short-term, relates, inter alia, to the days owed to the
Company by workers for the days not worked in the year and in previous years and which were not
considered working days in the work calendar. They are measured on the basis of the amounts paid
to workers for the working days not worked. At each year end, an analysis is performed to determine
the recoverability of this amount.
Effective interest rates on non-current receivables are as follows:

Housing loans to employees
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%
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4

4
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Overdue receivables which are less than one year old are not considered to be impaired. At 31
December 2017, there were overdue receivables amounting to €1,024 thousand (previous year:
€3,032 thousand), which were not impaired. These receivables relate to a number of customers for
which there are no recent default data. The age of these accounts is analysed below:

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

To 3 months

836

2.837

Between 3 months and 1 year

184

0.1

4

195

1.024

3.032

More than 1 year

At 31 December 2017, there is an impairment loss recognized on trade receivables amounting to
€143 thousand (previous year: €138 thousand). The age of these accounts is as follows:

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

-

5

Between 1 and 5 years

55

46

More than 5 years

88

87

143

138

Up to 1 year
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Vehicle sales, which account for 93.82% (95.34% in the previous year) of total sales in 2017, are made
through the Group companies, Volkswagen Group España Distribución and VW AG. These balances are
therefore not considered to trigger problems of impairment or default.
The movement in the provision for impairment losses on receivable is as follows:

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

(138)

(176)

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

(7)

(7)

Collection handling

2

45

(143)

(138)

Opening balance

Closing balance

Impairment adjustments to trade receivables are recognized and reversed in “Losses from,
impairment of and changes in trade provisions” in the income statement. Normally the amounts
charged against the impairment loss account are eliminated when no further cash is expected to be
recovered.
Other accounts included under Loans and receivables have not suffered any impairment.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each of the categories
of the aforementioned receivables. The Company does not have any guarantee as insurance.
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9. Inventories

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

Sales

14.224

9.468

Raw materials and other supplies

15.180

16.445

-

Long production cycle

189

124

-

Short production cycle

14.991

16.321

17.082

13.424

46.486

39.337

Work in progress and semi-finished goods

a)

Insurance

The Company has arranged several insurance policies to cover the risks to which inventories are
exposed. The coverage provided by these policies is considered to be sufficient.

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash
Other cash equivalents
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euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

5

8

10.598

218.457

10.603

218.465
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Cash equivalents include the Treasury current account centralised with the Group amounting to
€10,598 thousand (previous year: €218,457 thousand).
The balance of current accounts has decreased with respect to the previous year as a result of the
payments made in the year, corresponding to investments in fixed assets
Bank accounts and deposits (maturing in less than one year) and the cash pool (centralized treasury
account) accrued interest at a rate of 0.0% during the year (previous year: 0.002%).

11. Capital and share premium
a)

Share capital

Authorised capital

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

411.685

411.685

411.685

411.685

Share capital amounting to €411,685 thousand consists of 6,850,000 ordinary registered shares with
a par value of €60.10 each, fully subscribed and paid in.
There are no restrictions on the free transfer of the shares.
The Company’s single shareholder at 31 December 2016 and 2017 is SEAT, S.A.
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12. Reserves and prior-year results

a)

Reserves
Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

82.336

78.348

- Voluntary reserves

13.799

13.799

- Special reserve for investments (Provincial Law 12/93)

58.827

58.827

- Revaluation reserve ( Provincial Law 23/96)

59.044

59.044

Differences on adjustment of capital to euro

8

8

6.109

1.782

137.787

133.460

220.123

211.808

Legal and bylaws:
- Legal reserve

Other reserves:

- Shareholder contributions

Legal reserve
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Appropriations to the legal reserve are made in compliance with Article 274 of the Spanish Companies Act,
which stipulates that 10% of the profits for each year must be transferred to this reserve until it represents
at least 20% of share capital.
The legal reserve is not available for distribution. Should it be used to offset losses in the event of no other
reserves being available, it must be replenished out of future profits.

Special investment reserve, Provincial Law 12/93
This reserve was established in accordance with Provincial Law 12/1993 and may be used to offset
and /or increase capital.

Restatement Reserve, Provincial Law 1996
In accordance with Provincial Law 23/1996 on the Restatement of Assets, the Company restated its
property, plant and equipment and fixed asset under finance leases. The net amount of the
restatement, less the 3% tax, was €59,044 thousand.
The balance may be used to offset losses or increase the Company's share capital. Since the 10 year
period during which the reserve was unavailable has lapsed, €51,456 thousand (previous year:
€51,056 thousand) may be appropriated to freely available reserves as the capital gain has been partly
realized.

Shareholder contributions
Based on the agreement signed with the Single Shareholder of SEAT, S.A., the decision was taken to
pardon part of the balance payable for corporate income tax as shareholder contributions.

Differences on adjusting capital to euro
This reserve is not freely available.
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13. Profit/ (Loss) for the year

a)

Proposed distribution of results

The proposal to be presented to the General Shareholders’ Meeting regarding the distribution of
results together with the distribution approved for the previous year is as follows:

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

55.896

74.467

55.896

74.467

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

Basis of distribution
Profit for the period

Distribution
Legal reserve
Dividends
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14. Capital grants received
Movements in grants are analyzed below:

2016
Thousand euro

Decrease

Taken to
profit and
loss

Closing
balance

247

-

(247)

-

4.926

-

-

(1.840)

3.086

Tax effect

(1.476)

(74)

-

626

(924)

Net amount

3.450

173

-

(1.461)

2.162

Closing
balance

Opening
balance

Increases

-

Capital grants

Emission allowances

2017
Thousand euro

Opening
balance

Increases

Decrease

Taken to
profit and
loss

-

283

-

(283)

-

Capital grants

3.086

-

-

(625)

2.461

Tax effect

(924)

(85)

-

272

(737)

Net amount

2.162

198

-

(636)

1.724

Emission allowances
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Capital grants relate to fixed asset investments and have been received from the Government of
Navarra and the Ministry of Industry, Commerce and Tourism in the form of direct assistance or zero
rate loans. This heading also cinders non-repayable grants connected with greenhouse gas emission
allowances.

15. Financial liabilities

15.1.

Financial liabilities

The carrying amount of each category of financial instruments stipulated in recognition and
measurement standard “Financial instruments” is as follows:

Thousand euro

Financial liabilities in 2016

Other
Long-term:
- Creditors and payables (Note 16)

22.291
22.291
Trade and
other payables

Other

201.458

17.527

201.458

17.527

Short-term:
- Creditors and payables (Note 16)
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Thousand euro

Financial liabilities in 2017

Other
Long-term:
- Creditors and payables (Note 16)

20.039
20.039
Trade and
other payables

Other

268.045

13.888

268.045

13.888

Short-term:
- Creditors and payables (Note 16)

15.2.

Analysis by maturity

Financial instruments having fixed or determinable maturities are shown below by year of maturity:

Thousand euro
Financial liabilities in 2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

Subsequent
years

Total

Other financial
liabilities

13.888

3.363

3.336

3.316

3.302

6.722

33.927

Trade payables

268.045

-

-

-

-

-

268.045

281.933

3.363

3.336

3.316

3.302

6.722

301.972
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16. Creditors and payables

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

537

377

19.502

21.914

20.039

22.291

- Trade payables

153.721

94.303

- Payables to related parties (Note 28)

74.309

78.311

- Personnel

40.015

28.844

268.045

201.458

61

38

- Fixed asset suppliers

10.580

14.242

- Competitiveness plan

3.247

3.247

301.972

241.276

Long-term borrowings and payables
- Pre-retirement insurance
- Competitiveness plan

Short-term creditors and payables

- Pre-retirement insurance

The heading Competitiveness Plan includes, inter alia, repayable advances granted by the Ministry of
Science and Technology at zero interest rates and recognised at amortised cost. The Company has
guarantees in effect relating to such advances. The Company has received no loans during the year
from the Ministry of Industry within the framework of the Competitiveness Plan for the Automotive
Sector (no loans were received in 2016).
The carrying amounts of the Company’s payables are denominated in the following currencies:
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Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

298.309

239.268

2.161

1.795

Japanese yen

262

38

Czech koruna

-

70

136

104

1.104

1

301.972

241.276

Euro
US dollar

South-African rand
Chinese yuan

The breakdown of payments for commercial transactions during the year and pending at year end as
compared with the maximum legal periods provided in Law 16/2010 (60 days for 2017 and 2016) is as
follows:

2017

2016

Days

Days

Average supplier payment period

28

28

Ratio operations paid

29

28

Ratio operations pending payment

9

12

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

1.189.713

Total payments made

103.769

Total payments pending
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17. Other Provisions
The movements in provisions recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

2016
Thousand euro
Loans to
employees

Litigations

Other

Total

Opening balance

1.901

367

16.270

18.538

Aditions

1.378

5.895

7.273

Applications

(1.814)

(38)

(889)

(2.741)

Opening balance

1.465

329

21.276

23.070

2017
Thousand euro
Loans to
employees

Litigations

Other

Total

Opening balance

1.465

329

21.276

23.070

Aditions

6.353

114

10.602

17.069

Applications

(1.356)

4

(12.131)

(13.483)

Trasnfers

(6.462)

Opening balance

-
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447

19.747
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The total of these provisions is analysed below:

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

Non Current

5.489

4.682

Current

14.705

18.388

20.194

23.070

Other provisions mainly include the provision for claims concerning prices under review with
suppliers.

18. Corporate income tax and tax situation

Since 1 January Volkswagen Navarra, S.A. has formed part of the SEAT Group and is included in the
consolidated corporate income tax scheme under number 2/88. As financial entities form part of the
consolidation group, the applicable tax rate is 30%, including Volkswagen Navarra, S.A.

Set out below is the reconciliation between net income and expense for the year and the income tax
assessment base:
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Thousand euro
Income statement
Income and expenses balance for 2017

Increases

Decreases

Net

Profit for year

55.896

Corporate Income Tax

24.155

Temporary differences:

5.239

(15.579)

(10.340)

416

(290)

126

4.823

-

4.823

(15.289)

(15.289)

- arising on tax consolidation
- arising in the year
- arising in prior years

24.155

Tax base (tax profit/(loss)

69.711

Temporary differences relate mainly to differences between tax and accounting amortization /
depreciation.
Income tax expense is analyzed below:
Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

Current tax

16.998

23.650

Deferred tax

7.264

3.623

(107)

(16)

24.155

27.257

Other

Current corporate income tax is the result of applying the 30% tax rate to taxable income, which has
been reduced by €3,916 thousand due to deductions.
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The amount payable to SEAT amounts to €16,998 thousand (previous year: €23,650 thousand).
However, as advance payments have been made amounting to €8,557 thousand, there is a balance
receivable amounting to €8,441 thousand.
Tax credits are available for investments in the environment, training, reinvestment of capital gains
and research & development. The amounts involved and years when such credits lapse are set out
below:

Year

Available for offset
until

Thousand euro

2010

30

2025

2012

55

2027

2013

585

2028

2014

440

2029

2015

194

2030

1.304

There are no tax losses available for offset at 31 December 2017.
At 31 December 2017 the Company has recognized the deductions generated amounting to €1,304
thousand (previous year €5,026 thousand) as deferred tax assets, based on their recoverability at tax
consolidation level (Note 19).
All the Company’s tax returns for the last four years for the principal taxes to which it is subject are
open to inspection by the tax authorities.
Total reciprocal receivables and payables between Group companies as a result of consolidated
taxation amount to €85,055 thousand (previous year €88,984 thousand).
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19. Deferred tax and other balances with Public Administrations
19.1.

Deferred taxes

Set out below is an analysis of deferred tax:
Thousand
euro
2017

Thousand
euro
2016

Deferred tax assets:
- Temporary differences
- Other tax credits

19.433

22.869

1.304

5.026

20.737

27.895

(897)

(978)

(897)

(978)

19.840

26.917

Deferred tax liabilities:
- Temporary differences

Deferred taxes
The gross movement in deferred taxes is as follows:

Thousand
euro
29.988

Opening balance at 1/1/2016
Application, decrease in corporate income tax payment

(3.623)

Application, charge to equity

552

Disposal

-

Closing balance at 31/12/2016

26.917

Application, decrease in corporate income tax payment

(7.264)

Application, charge to equity

187

Closing balance at 31/12/2017
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The movement during the year in deferred tax assets and liabilities has been as follows:
Thousand euro

Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary
differences
(leases)

Temporary
differences
(grants)

Total

60

1.478

1.538

Balance at 1 January 2016
Generation, decrease in corporate income tax
payable

(8)

-

(8)

Charged to equity
Balance at 31 December 2016

52

(552)
926

(552)
978

Generation, decrease in corporate income tax
payable

106

Charged to equity
Balance at 31 December 2017

106

-

(187)

(187)

158

739

897

Thousand euro
Temporary
differences
(amortisation
/
depreciation)

Other
temporary
differences

Deductions

Balance at 1 January 2016

25.656

784

5.087

31.527

Generation
Application, decrease in corporate
income tax payable

330
(4.694)

79
(201)

2.355
(2.416)

2.764
(7.311)

Disposal
Balance at 31 December 2016

915
22.207

662

5.026

915
27.895

Generation
Application, decrease in corporate
income tax payable

1.026
(4.147)

212
(527)

194
(3.916)

1.432
(8.590)

19.086

347

1.304

20.737

Deferred tax assets

Additions
Balance at 31 December 2017
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Deferred tax assets for tax credits are recognised to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
Therefore Volkswagen Navarra, S.A. has not recognised €4,365 thousand in temporary differences
whose recoverability is not expected in the next 10 years (2016: €4,365 thousand).

19.2.

Other balances with Public Administrations

These balances break down as follows:

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

41.465

40.982

41.465

40.982

11.811

10.473

11.811

10.473

Balances receivable
- Other short-term receivables from Public administrations

Balances payable
- Other short-term payables with the Public Administrations

Short-term receivables with the Public Administrations relate principally to VAT for November and
December.
Sales abroad are invoiced to VW AG (Germany) whereas sales in Spain are invoiced to Volkswagen
Group España Distribución (a Spanish customer).
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20. Income and expenses

a)

Transactions denominated in foreign currency:

Transactions carried out in foreign currency are as follows:

Purchases

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

24.163

14.590

6

18

24.169

14.608

Services received

b)

Revenue

Revenue from ordinary activities breaks down geographically as follows:

Market
Spain
Abroad
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%

%

2017

2016
9

8

91

92

100

100
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Similarly, revenue may be analyzed by product line as follows:

Line

%

%

2017

2016

Cars

94

95

6

5

100

100

Other

c)

Consumption of goods for resale, raw materials and other consumables
Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

109.012

104.241

Intra-Community acquisitions

25.319

11.546

Changes in inventories

(4.296)

(1.004)

130.035

114.783

1.077.584

1.212.804

838.911

1.116.491

32.439

32.105

866

(1.958)

1.949.800

2.359.442

Consumption of goods purchased for resale:
Purchases in Spain

Consumption of raw materials and other consumables
Purchases in Spain
Intra-Community acquisitions
Imports
Changes in inventories
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d)

Other operating income

The operating income corresponds mostly to re-invoicing to the group in the amount of 20 million
euros, which increased with respect to the previous year due to the re-invoicing of the pre series
The Company recognized €1.339 thousand (previous year: €598 thousand) as operating grants,
relating to direct government grants for training and innovation expenses.

e)

Staff costs

Wages, salaries and similar compensation

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

203.641

186.391

61.736

58.870

265.377

245.261

Staff welfare expenses:
- Other welfare expenses

Wages, salaries and similar include termination benefits for the employees who availed themselves of
voluntary redundancy amounting to €12 million (2016: €8.5 million).
The average number of employees by category during the year is as follows:

Directors

Number

Number

2017

2016
1

1

Executives

116

116

Technical personnel

602

567

Indirect labour

428

414

3.559

3.410

4.706

4.508

Direct labour
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The average number of persons employed in 2017 with a disability equal to or greater than 33%
amounted to:
Number

Number

2017

2016

Greater than 33%

1

1

Partial Permanent Disability

7

9

Total Permanent Disability

41

43

49

53

The distribution by gender of the Company’s personnel at the year- end is as follows:

2017
Men
Directors

2016

Women

Total

Men

Women

Total

1

-

1

1

-

1

Executives

103

11

114

105

11

116

Technical personnel

492

118

610

461

112

573

Indirect labour

421

2

423

416

2

418

Direct labour

3.240

505

3.745

3.006

433

3.439

Total personnel

4.257

636

4.893

3.989

558

4.547
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f)

Gains /(Iosses) from disposal of non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment (Note 6)

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

844

(20)

844

(20)

21. Financial results
Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

Financial income:
Marketable securities and other financial instruments
- Group companies (cash-pooling)

-

4

43

52

43

56

Payables to group companies and associates (factoring
commissions and other)

(497)

(1.121)

Payables to third parties

(635)

(717)

(1.132)

(1.838)

Exchange differences

(359)

(414)

Financial results

(730)

(2.196)

- Third parties

Financial expense:
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22. Cash flows from operating activities
Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

80.051

101.724

64.597

49.880

(386)

417

15.359

(1.434)

- Release of grants

(908)

(2.087)

- Profit/(loss) on write-offs and disposals of fixed assets

(844)

20

(43)

(56)

1.132

1.838

78.907

48.578

(6.758)

(3.245)

(101.898)

30.726

(307)

(3.579)

49.974

6.872

39

(44)

160

118

(58.790)

30.848

(1.132)

(1.838)

43

56

(2.612)

(32.139)

(3.701)

(33.921)

96.467

147.229

Profit/(loss) for the year before tax
Adjustments for:
- Fixed asset amortisation / depreciation
- Value adjustments for impairment
- Change in provisions

- Financial income
- Financial expenses

Changes in working capital:
- Inventories
- Debtors and other receivables
- Other current assets
- Creditors and other payables
- Other current liabilities
- Other non-current assets and liabilities

Other cash flows from operating activities:
- Payment of interest
- Receipt of interest
- Collection (payment ) corporate income tax

Cash flows from operating activities
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23. Cash flows from investing activities

Thousand euro

Thousand euro

2017

2016

Payments for investments:
- Intangible assets
- Property, plant and equipment
- Other financial assets

(2.939)

(3.242)

(230.819)

(166.229)

-

-

(233.758)

(169.471)

- Group companies and associates

-

-

- Property, plant and equipment

-

-

2.194

258

126

1.812

2.320

2.070

(231.438)

(167.401)

Receipts from divesments:

- Intangible assets
- Other financial assets

Cash flows from investing activities
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24. Cash flows from financing activities
Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

(2.412)

(1.960)

(2.412)

(1.960)

(70.479)

(54.693)

(70.479)

(54.693)

(72.891)

(56.653)

Receipts and payments financial liability instruments:
- Return and repayment of other debts

Dividend payments and return other equity instruments
- Dividends

Cash flows from financing activities

25. Contingencies
a)

Contingent liabilities

The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of litigations which have arisen in the ordinary
course of business and which are not expected to give rise to significant liabilities other than those for
which provision has already been made (Note 17).
Other information. Issues
In response to the incident detected in September of 2015 in certain Volkswagen diesel engines
model EA189, during 2017, the implementation of technical solutions approved by the competent
authorities has continued in Volkswagen vehicles equipped with said engines. The cost of said
implementation is being and shall continue to be assumed by Volkswagen AG. All of the vehicles are
technically safe and apt for driving.

The Volkswagen group continues to be in permanent contact with the distinct European authorities
when necessary, acting in a rapid and transparent manner.
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The directors have assessed the potential risks that may be derived from these situations and have
acted accordingly, considering all of the concurrent circumstances with impact on the annual
accounts and have concluded that there is no need for any provision in this respect.

26. Commitments
a)

Purchase and sale commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Company has signed purchase contracts for the following items and
amounts:

Property, plant and equipment

Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

114.960

165.050

114.960

165.050

The Company is planning to finance its purchase commitments through its centralized treasury
account.
The main sales commitments of the company are marked by the investments of the VW 270 model
(41,010 thousand euros) and the new VW216 model (66,101 thousand euros).

27. Board of Directors Situations of conflict of interest of Directors
As part of the duty to avoid conflicts with the Company's interests, during the year the directors who
have held positions on the Board of Directors have discharged the obligations set forth in Article 228
of the Spanish Companies Act. Additionally, these directors and parties related to them have not come
under the provisions of conflict of interests in Article 229 of this law, except where the pertinent
authorization was obtained.
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28. Related -party transactions
a)

Group companies

There follows below an itemised breakdown of the volume of business generated in 2017 under the
contracts between Volkswagen Navarra, S.A. (Sociedad Unipersonal) and SEAT, S.A., the company’s
single shareholder:
Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

Purchases and expenses
- Materials

94.525

94.946

- Services

637

641

(5)

(103)

95.157

95.484

1.930

1.028

1.930

1.028

- Financial expenses

Sales and income
- Materials
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The transactions carried out with the companies of the Volkswagen Group, particularly those with
SEAT, S.A, Skoda Auto a.s.; Volkswagen AG; Volkswagen Argentina, S.A.; Volkswagen Group España
Distribución, VW Insurance Services, VW Logistics, VW Sachsen, Volkswagen of South Africa,
Autovisión, VW India, Auto Europa, Lda., and other companies were as follows:
Thousand
euro

Thousand
euro

2017

2016

- Materials

(557.131)

(741.467)

- Vehicles

-

-

(557.131)

(741.467)

2.501.385

2.878.495

Services received

(22.046)

(11.154)

Services rendered

21.277

12.225

-

4

(492)

(1.121)

1.942.993

2.136.982

Purchases

Sales

Accrued financial income
Accrued financial expense

Purchases mainly relate to the acquisition of vehicles, parts and accessories. VW AG accounts for
€336,030 thousand (2016: €563,540 thousand) and Skoda for €104,458 thousand (2016: €90.629
thousand). Sales mostly relate to cars and bodywork and other parts. They are made mainly to
Volkswagen Group España Distribución, €211,004 thousand (2016: €218,060 thousand) and VW AG,
€2,172,874 thousand (2016: €2,543,387 thousand). The services received include, inter alia, expenses
deriving from the manufacture of prototypes, investment costs, insurance premiums, assignee costs
and other costs associated with services contracts.
The services provided refer mainly to support to group companies, brand quality, support in the
launch and manufacture of prototypes, personnel services etc. Financial income and expense derive
mainly from factoring operations, deposit operations and cash pooling with VIB (formerly named
VGS). Additionally, there are financial expenses deriving from purchases of materials from other
group companies.
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The margin on sales with Group companies is a market mark-up. Purchases from Group companies
are made on an arm’s length basis.
The notes refer to other transactions with Group companies (Note 6).

29. Environmental disclosures
All operations designed mainly to minimise environmental impacts and protect and improve the
environment are deemed to be environmental activities.
The most significant systems, equipment and facilities devoted to environmental activities are as
follows:
2016

Description

Gross value

Thousand euro
Accumulated
depreciation

Net value

Treatment plant

1,934

1,934

-

Electricity Consumption Control System

2,112

1,359

753

Water Saving Hydrant Network

1,532

1,112

420

34,968

34,696

272

1,869

1,332

537

Reform Wax Application in Final Review

1,214

517

697

Automation application Interior putty

1,581

1,578

3

TTS /KTL facilities

4,986

1,503

3,483

New treatment plant

4,075

1,056

3,019

Replacement Cold R22 body shop

2,772

380

2,392

911

381

530

Refrigerating gas facilities R1234yF air-cond. cars

5,599

295

5,304

Replacement of incinerator lacquer ovens

2.124

68

2.056

65.677

46.211

19.466

Painting System replacement, New Painting
Facilities
8 bar air generation and Refrigeration plant

HD lacquer spray booths
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2017
Thousand
euro

Gross value

Accumulated
depreciation

Treatment plant

1.934

1.934

0

Electricity Consumption Control System

2.180

1.542

638

Water Saving Hydrant Network

1.532

1.209

323

34.959

34.706

253

8 bar air generation and Refrigeration
plant

1.869

1.429

440

Reform Wax Application in Final Review

1.214

560

654

Automation application Interior putty

1.581

1.578

3

TTS /KTL facilities

4.986

2.031

2.955

New treatment plant

4.075

1.414

2.661

Replacement Cold R22 body shop

2.772

545

2.227

911

536

375

Refrigerating gas facilities R1234yF aircond. cars

5.744

970

4.774

Replacement of incinerator lacquer ovens

2.537

320

2.217

66.294

48.774

17.520

Description

Painting System replacement, New
Painting Facilities

HD lacquer spray booths
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During 2017 the Company made significant environmental investments amounting to €1,888
thousand (previous year: €7,696 thousand).

Expenses related to environmental protection and improvement taken directly to the income
statement amount to €8,215 thousand (previous year: €8,307 thousand) and relate basically to
expenses connected with waste, dumping and depreciation.

Possible contingencies, indemnities and other environmental risks that could be incurred by the
Company are adequately covered by third-party liability insurance.

30. Auditors’ fees
The audit fees accrued during the year by PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L. for audit services
totalled € 78 thousand (previous year : € 78 thousand) and for other audit services in relation to the
quarterly reviews of the year, amounted to 39 thousand euros (previous year 39 thousand euros)
euros).
The fees accrued during the year by other companies using the PricewaterhouseCoopers trademark as
a result of other services provided to the Company amounted to €0 thousand (previous year : € 17.5
thousand).
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Essential figures

2012
Production (cars)

287.287

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

289.589

305.700

298.358

296.799

244.127

Employees
(year-end situation)

4.386

4.491

4.274

4.402

4.547

4.893

Direct labour

3.287

3.408

3.192

3.326

3.439

3.745

Indirect labour

1.099

1.083

1.082

1.076

1.108

1.148

57,7

76,0

33,7

129,4

Income (Mill. € )

2.651,1

2.654,2

2.931,9

2.996,7

2.939,7

2.560,8

Expenses (Mill. € )

2.606,9

2.604,0

2.879,0

2.935,9

2.865,2

2.504,9

(Inc.)Taxes(Mill. € )

18,9

21,7

30,2

26,7

27.3

24,2

Year result (Mill. € )

44,2

50,2

52,9

60,8

74,5

55,9

Bruto-Cash-flow (Mill. € )

115,1

117,9

119,7

124,9

124,3

120,5

Assets (Mill. € )

966,6

950,7

936,8

966,7

976,0

1.032,8

Non current assets

452,0

469,2

435,9

501,5

611,6

768,4

Current assets

514,6

481,6

500,9

465,2

364,4

264,4

Equity and liabilities (Mill. € )

966,6

950,7

936,8

966,7

976.0

1.032,8

Equity

655,3

662,4

668,2

679,9

700,1

689,4

35,4

35,6

35,1

31,1

28,0

26,4

276,0

252,7

233,6

255,7

247,9

317,0

Investments (Mill. € )

Non current liabilities
Current liabilities
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Balance sheet at the year-end 2017
December 2017 and 2016 (thousand euro)

ASSETS

Note

31.12.17

31.12.16

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets

5

4.808

5.305

Property, plant and equipment

6

734.221

569.575

8.683

8.809

8.683

8.809

20.737

27.895

768.449

611.584

9

46.486

39.337

7-8

203.368

102.987

833

93

159.595

59.038

1.169

1.076

306

286

Long-term investments

7-8

Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

19

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables for sales and services rendered
Trade receivables from group companies and
associates
Sundry receivables
Loans to employees
Current tax assets

18

-

1.512

Other receivables with Public Administrations

19

41.465

40.982

7-8

3.893

3.586

3.893

3.586

10.603

218.465

264.350

364.375

1.032.799

975.959

Short-term financial investments
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

31.12.17

31.12.16

687.704

697.960

EQUITY
Shareholders' funds
Share capital

11

411.685

411.685

Reserves

12

220.123

211.808

Profit for the year

13

55.896

74.467

14

1.724

2.162

689.428

700.122

5.489

4.682

Grants, donations and bequests received

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term provisions
Other Provisions

17

5.489

4.682

Long-term payables

15

20.039

22.291

20.039

22.291

897

978

26.425

27.951

17

14.705

18.388

15-16

13.888

17.527

13.888

17.527

288.297

211.931

153.721

94.303

Trade payables, Group companies and associates

74.309

78.311

Accrued wages and salaries

40.015

28.844

Other financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

19

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term provisions
Short-term payables
Other financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

15-16

Trade payables

Current tax liabilities

18

8.441

-

Other payables to the Public Institutions-

19

11.811

10.473

56

40

316.946

247.886

1.032.799

975.959

Accruals and deferred income

Sociedad Unipersonal – Domicilio Social: Polígono de Landaben, s/n – Arazuri (Navarra)
Registro Mercantil de Navarra, Tomo 343, Hoja NA 7.250, (VAT) C.I.F. (ES) A31472459

57
UNE-EN ISO 9001

ER-0137 / 1994

Informe de Ejercicio 2016

Income statement for the year ended
31 DECEMBER 2017 (thousand euro)
Note

31.12.2017

31.12.2016

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Revenue

20

Sales

2.524.845

2.911.464

2.524.845

2.911.464

Changes in inventories of finished products and work in progress

3.658

283

Own work capitalised

4.389

3.713

(2.079.444)

(2.474.679)

Raw materials and other consumables
Consumption of goods purchased for resale

20

(130.035)

(114.783)

Consumption of raw materials and other consumables

20

(1.949.800)

(2.359.442)

Impairment of goods for resale, raw materials and other
Other operating income
Sundry and other income
Operating grants released to income during the year
Staff costs

(454)
18.480

25.838

17.882

20

1.339

598

20

(265.377)

(245.261)

(203.641)

(186.391)

Wages, salaries and similar compensation
Employee welfare charges
Other operating expenses
External services
Taxes
Losses, impairment and variation in trade provisions
- Other expenses
Fixed asset amortisation/ depreciation

5-6

Release of non-financial asset grants and other

14

Overprovision
Impairment and profit/loss on fixed asset disposals
Results on disposals and other
20
Impairment and losses
OPERATING PROFIT
Financial income
Financial expenses
Exchange differences
FINANCIAL INCOME/(LOSS)

391
27.177

21

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

(61.736)

(58.870)

(73.644)

(65.805)

(70.226)

(64.883)

(671)

(598)

(5)

38

(2.742)

(362)

(64.597)

(49.880)

908

2.087

2.022

3.538

844

(20)

855

-

(11)

(20)

80.781

103.920

43

56

(1.132)

(1.838)

359

(414)

(730)

(2.196)

80.051

101.724

Corporate income tax

18

(24.155)

(27.257)

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

13

55.896

74.467

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit/(loss) for year from discontinued operations net of taxes
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
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Cash Flow Statement
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (thousand euro)

Notas

Year ended 31
December 2017

Year ended 31
December 2016

22

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the year before tax.

80.051

101.724

Adjustments to profit

78.907

48.578

Changes in working capital

(58.790)

30.848

Other cash flows from operating activities

(3.701)

(33.921)

Cash flows from operating activities

96.467

147.229

(233.758)

(169.471)

2.320

2.070

Cash flow from investing activities

23

Payments for investments
Collections from divestment
Cash flows from investing activities

(231.438)

(167.401)

Proceeds from and payment of financial liabilities

(2.412)

(1.960)

Payment of dividends and remuneration of other equity
instruments:

(70.479)

(54.693)

Cash flows from financing activities

(72.891)

(56.653)

Cash flow from financing activities

24

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations

-

-

Increase / Decrease in cash and cash equivalents, net

(207.862)

(76.825)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

218.465

295.290

10.603

218.465

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
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Equity
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

A)
STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2017 (thousand euro)

Note

Year ended 31 December Year ended 31 December
2016
2017

Profit/(loss) recognized in the income statement

55.896

74.467

283

247

(85)

(74)

198

173

(908)

(2.087)

272

626

(636)

(1.461)

55.458

73.179

Income and expenses attributed directly to equity
Grants, donations and bequests received

14

Tax effect

Transfers to the income statement
Grants, donations and bequests received

14

Tax effect

TOTAL RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXPENSE

B)
TOTAL STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(thousand euro)
Authorized
capital
Adjusted opening balance 2015

Profit(Loss) for
the year

Reserves

Grants, donations
and bequests
received

Total

411.685

203.949

60.770

3.450

679.854

- Total recognized income and expenses

-

-

74.467

(1.288)

73.179

- Distribution of dividends

-

(54.693)

-

-

(54.693)

Shareholders' contribution

-

1.782

-

-

1.782

Other changes in equity

-

60.770

(60.770)

-

-

Closing balance 2015

411.685

211.808

74.467

2.162

700.122

Adjusted opening balance 2016

411.685

211.808

74.467

2.162

700.122

- Total recognized income and expenses

-

-

55.896

(438)

55.458

- Dividend payment

-

(70.479)

-

-

(70.479)

Shareholders' contribution

-

4.237

-

-

4.327

Other changes in equity.

-

74.467

(74.467)

-

-

411.685

220.123

55.896

1.724

689.428

Closing balance 2016
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135.109

44.384

3.375

36.229

795.931

450.081

26.755

250.202

Technical equipment and machinery

Other facilities, tools and office equipment

Other tangible assets
Payments on account and tangible assets
in progress
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13.759

3.229

1.424

141.354

778.234

446.531

25.138

114.138

Technical equipment and machinery

Other facilities, tools and office equipment

Other tangible assets
Payments on account and tangible assets
in progress

TOTAL

Land and buildings

165.811

162.794
3.028

1.753.731
389.690

1.790.081

---

1.380

Greenhouse gas emission rights
Payments on account and intangible assets
in progress
TANGIBLE ASSETS

192

3.017

1.637

36.350

Additions

35.794

Initial
Balance
01.01.16

(57.753)

(24)

(50.652)

(6.764)

(57.440)

-

---

(313)

(313)

Disposals

2.127.756

-

(115)

---

(34)

(2)

(79)

(115)
-

-

---

---

---

Disposals

(364)

(5.290)

227

323

4.017

(177)
546

110

(364)

67

(187)

Transfers

1.955.413

250.202

26.755

450.081

795.931

1.916.233
393.264

1.682

---

37.498

39.180

End
Balance
31.12.16

36.778

32.503

488.476

1.097.186

2.085.950
431.007

256

---

41.550

41.806

End
Balance
31.12.17

(249.653)

2.397

44.663

172.910

(1)
29.682

(1.643)

---

1.644

1

Transfers

Cost of acquisition or manufacture

364

Software

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

TOTAL

Land and buildings

230.096

227.158
8.061

1.916.233
393.264

1.955.413

--217

Greenhouse gas emission rights
Payments on account and intangible assets
in progress
TANGIBLE ASSETS

---

2.938

2.721

39.180

37.498

Additions

Cost of acquisition or manufacture

1.682

Software

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Initial
Balance
01.01.17

Appended Nº 1
Evolution of Non-Current Assets (Thousands of euros)

1.329.590

-

21.470

413.481

684.384

1.299.080
179.745

-

-

30.510

30.510

Initial
Balance
01.01.16

1.379.374

-

22.737

420.023

711.355

1.345.499
191.384

-

-

33.875

33.875

Initial
Balance
01.01.17

49.880

1.301

6.544

27.032

46.515
11.638

-

-

3.365

3.365

Additions

64.597

-

1.944

11.186

36.715

61.161
11.316

-

-

3.436

3.436

Additions

(96)

-

(34)

(2)

(60)

(96)

-

-

-

(1)

1.379.374

-

22.737

420.023

711.355

1.345.499
191.384

1

-

-

33.875

33.875

End
Balance
31.12.16

1.387.568

-

24.657

381.906

741.307

1.350.570
202.700

-

-

36.998

36.998

End
Balance
31.12.17

-

-

-

-

Transfers

-

-

-

-

Transfers

Disposals

Depreciation

(56.403)

-

(24)

(49.303)

(6.763)

(56.090)

-

-

(313)

(313)

Disposals

Depreciation

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1.159

-

-

-

-

1.159
1.159

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1.159

-

-

-

-

1.159
1.159

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1.159

-

-

-

-

1.159
1.159

-

-

-

-

End
Balance
Disposals 31.12.16

Impairment

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

End
Balance
Disposals 31.12.17

-

-

-

Initial
Balance
01.01.1 Additions

1.159

-

-

-

-

1.159
1.159

-

-

-

-

Initial
Balance
01.01.1 Additions

Impairment

574.880

250.202

4.018

30.058

84.576

569.575
200.721

1.682

3.623

5.305

Net book
value
31.12.16

739.029

36.778

7.846

106.570

355.879

734.221
227.148

-

4.552

4.808

Net book
value
31.12.17

Informe de Ejercicio 2016

Evolution of Non-Current Assets 2017 (Thousands of
euros)
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Directors' Report 2017
1. Company Profile
Volkswagen Navarra, S.A.U. was incorporated on the 22nd of December of 1993 and began its activity
on the 1st of January of 1994. On the 16th of December of 1997, all of the shares of Volkswagen
Navarra, S.A.U. were transferred in favour of the company SEAT S.A., with this becoming the
company’s sole shareholder.
The company has a single production centre which is located in Arazuri (Navarre). This factory began
operations in 1965 and for the past 52 years it has manufactured distinct models for distinct
automobile consortiums.
The company’s industrial activity is focused on the manufacturing of the Volkswagen Polo, its
components, replacement parts and accessories. Since May of 2003, Volkswagen Navarra, S.A.U. has
carried out the activity of consolidation and exportation of interior manufacturing parts and
components as the southern European provider whose destination are the overseas VW Group
companies (South Africa, India…).
In October of this year, the SKD business began with the shipment of unassembled cars to Algeria, a
country that had been exporting a limited number of units given this country’s governmental
restrictions on importation. Since this year, unassembled cars were sent and their assembly was
carried out in the destination country, thereby increasing the number of units sold and diversifying
the business style in countries in which the automobile country is growing and that make up a vitally
important commercial platform.
Currently, over 4800 individuals work in Volkswagen Navarra, S.A.U. The technical capacity of this
company is 1,400 cars/day of the Polo model, a production volume that is marketed in over 50
countries across the globe.
We wish to thank our clients for the trust that they place in our products, as well as our suppliers,
both external, such as the Volkswagen Group, for their collaboration in the optimization of the
products and processes, and similarly, we wish to reveal our special acknowledgement of all of the
Volkswagen Navarra, S.A.U. personnel for their efforts and generous contributions.

2014
Sales (cars)
Sales (millions of euros)
Productivity (cars/person)

305,700
2,909.8
71.2

2015

2016

298,358
2,976.2
70.9

296,799
2,911.5
68.6

2017
244,127
2,524.8
49.7 (*)

(*) Year of launching of new VW270 model
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2. Management Boards (as of 31st December 2017)
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

President:

Dr. F.J. García Sanz

Directors :

Luis Comas Martínez de Tejada
Dr. Stefan Maximilian Piëch (1)
Dr. Josep Piqué Camps (2)
Mark Philipp Porsche (3)
Emilio Sáenz

Board Secretary and legal Counsellor:

Luis Comas Martínez de Tejada

(1) Dr. Maximilian Piëch was appointed member of the Board of Directors by agreement of the
General Shareholders Board Meeting on the 1st of December of 2016, effective as of the 2nd of
January of 2017.
(2) Dr. Josep Piqué Camps was appointed member of the Board of Directors by agreement of the
General Shareholders Board Meeting on the 1st of December of 2016, effective as of the 2nd of
January of 2017.
(3) Mr. Mark Philipp Porsche was appointed member of the Board of Directors by agreement of
the General Shareholders Board Meeting on the 1st of December of 2016, effective as of the
2nd of January of 2017.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

President:

Emilio Sáenz

Technical Product Depart. Director: Ramón Bultó
Quality Control Director:

Matthias Schalk

Finance Director:

Ingo Neubert (1)

Logistics Director:

Alfonso Eslava

Planning Director:

Karsten Heuer (2)

Production Director:

Miguel Angel Grijalba

Human Resources Director:

Susanne Dellit

(1) Mr. Ingo Neubert was appointed Finance Director by agreement of the Board of Directors on
the 5th of October of 2017, effective on the 1st of August of 2017, in substitution of Mr.
Antonio Costa.
(2) Mr. Karsten Heuer was appointed Planning Director by agreement of the Board of Directors on
the 5th of October of 2017, effective on the 1st of September of 2017.

AUDIT, COMPLIANCE AND GOOD GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
President:

Dr. Josep Piqué Camps

Member:

Dr. Stefan Maximilian Piëch
Mark Philipp Porsche

Secretary:

Luis Comas Martínez de Tejada

(Note:) All members of the Committee were appointed on the 28th of November of 2016 effective as
of the 2nd of January of 2017.
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3. Economic developments
Global Economic Situation
The year 2017 was marked by a surge in economic activity on a global level, which had begun during
the second half of 2016. Global growth, which in 2016 recorded its lowest rates since the financial
crisis, reached 3.2% in 2017. Thus, the global economy recovered its impulse, given that, thanks to an
increased employment and commerce investment, most countries showed positive evolution, with
prices on the rise and maintaining low interest rates.
The main advanced economies achieved a good level of growth, exceeding the expectations from the
start of the year. The United States grew by 2.2%, strengthened from good consumer behaviour and
business investment. And in Europe, the greatest increase over the past decade was recorded,
reaching a rate of 2.3%, despite the uncertainty generated by the U.K.’s Brexit negotiations. The
unemployment rate in the euro zone continued to decrease.
As for the main emerging economies (BRICS), in 2017, they grew simultaneously for the first time in
the past three years.
Spain:
In Spain, despite the major political instability generated from the territorial problems, the GDP
maintained its dynamism, impulse in large part by the internal demand, standing at 3.1% (previous
year 3.3%). The main stimulus was the creation of employment, which allowed for the continued
reduction of the high unemployment rate of the Spanish economy, situated at 16.5% (previous year
18.6%). Similarly, there was once again a significant reduction in the public deficit level, in line with
the measures agreed upon with the European Commission.
Navarre:
The Navarre economy continued the previous year’s trend and closed 2017 with a growth in the GDP
for the year, standing at 3.2% (previous year 2.9%).
The CPI of Navarre was situated at 0.6% (Spain at 1.1%). The unemployment rate decreased with
comparison to the prior year, by 0.4 percentage points, maintaining levels that were notably lower
than those of the national mean, being the autonomous community with the lowest unemployment
rate, at 9.6%.
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4. Automobile industry
In 2017, global automobile sales grew by 2.9% reaching 83.5 million vehicles, a new historic
maximum.
The Volkswagen Group sold 10.7 million units worldwide, 6% more than in the previous year in which
it sold 10.1 million units.
Demand has increased in Western Europe, the Asian-Pacific and South America and has decreased in
North America, the Middle East and Africa. The sector has been greatly influenced by tax measures
having favourable and adverse effects such as variation of the tax burden, sales incentive programs
and protectionist measures.
In Western Europe, the recovery process has continued and once again an increased volume has been
recorded for the past ten years with 14.3 million vehicles (+2.5%). This trend has taken place thanks to
a positive consumption environment and low interest rates. As for registrations in the French market,
growth has been less than last year (+4.8%), as was the case in Great Britain (+5.7%) due in this latter
case to taxation changes, and in Italy (+8.1%) and Spain (+7.7%) considerable growth has been
recorded due mainly to commercial client demand.
In Central and Eastern Europe, there has been a significant increase until reaching 3.0 million vehicles
(+12.6%) due mainly to the Russian market which has seen demand increases for the first time in four
years, reaching 1.5 million vehicles (+12.3%).
In Germany, there has been a growth in production, reaching, with 3.4 million vehicles, the highest
volume since 2009, thanks to the positive macroeconomic environment, vehicle substitution
discounts and a bonus for hybrid and electric vehicles.
The South African market has experienced a slight increase in registrations until reaching 0.37 million
units despite weak economic conditions, thanks to purchase incentives and lower interest rates.
In North America, there has been a slight decrease in sales with respect to the previous year, reaching
a volume of 20.8 million vehicles (-1.4%). In the United States, demand fell (-1.8%) despite a positive
labour situation, high consumer confidence and generous manufacturer incentive programs. The
trend continues to increase for the demand of SVU models ands pick-up trucks to the detriment of
classic vehicles. In Canada, once again there have been improved figures over the recent years (+4.6%)
while in Mexico, the record from the previous year was not reached for sale of passenger cars and
light commercial vehicles (-4.6%).
In South America, there has been a strong increase for the first time over the past four years, in terms
of demand for passenger cars and light commercial vehicles reaching 4.2 million units (+12.6%). In
Brazil, after four years of decreases, an increase of 2.2 million vehicles (+9.4%) was recorded although
the market volume continued to be much lower than the average from the past ten years. Vehicle
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exports from Brazil increased, surpassing the record from 2005, due mainly to market development in
Argentina, which experienced an increase as compared to the previous year, thanks to attractive
manufacturer models and price reductions.
The Asian Pacific regions have experienced the greatest absolute increase in global sales with 37.0
million units, due mainly to the growth experienced in China, despite the advance purchases at the
end of 2016, due to the tax increment taking place at the beginning of 2017. In India, there was also
market growth due to the high level of consumer confidence, a large quantity of new models,
attractive financing offers and improved purchase conditions for consumers. In Japan, the Japanese
passenger automobile market recorded a notable increase as compared to the low level from the
previous year, due mainly to the success of the new model market and continued state support for
low consumption and low emissions vehicles.
In Spain, vehicle production has once again recorded a decrease of 1.5% as compared to the previous
year, with a total of 2,848,335 units. This may be explained by the decrease experienced in some of
the markets such as the United Kingdom, where uncertainties regarding the Brexit process and
devaluation of the pound in comparison to the euro have influenced the automobile market,
decreasing Spanish exports, and Turkey, which experienced a drop in its interior market. On the other
hand, 2017 has been a year in which new models were begun to be manufactured in Spain and the
adaptation processes of the lines has caused a slowing of production.
In terms of type of vehicles, passenger cars have decreased by -3.0 %, the manufacture of SUVs has
increased by 3.3% and the production of industrial vehicles has completed the year with an increase
of 4.7%.
As for the registration of passenger cars, the year ended with an increase of 7.7% as compared to the
previous year, with 1,234.931 units (previous year 1,147,007 units) although the volumes from the
years prior to the crisis have yet to be reached. This result may be explained by the good behaviour of
the channel of companies (12.8%) and the channel of renters (+9.2%). The channel of private
consumers has recorded an increase of 4.4%, an acceptable level given the economic times and
consumer confidence rates in Spain.
Diesel cars revealed a significant decrease in their market share, situating at 48.3% (previous year at
56.8%), with gasoline vehicles increasing, 46.6% (prior year 40.2%) and hybrids (5.1% as compared to
3.0% from the prior year). As for the distinct segments, registrations decreased in the minivan, midsized and urban segments, while there were decreases in the rest of the segments, with the increases
in the SUV sector being especially significant. Small and middle sized passenger cars represented
55.9% of the registrations and SUV represented 34.9%.
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5. Volkswagen Navarra, S.A.U.
In 2017, Volkswagen Navarra S.A.U. reached a volume of 244,127 units sold, representing 10.9% of
the total Spanish production of passenger cars. The Volkswagen Polo was the most frequently sold
vehicle that was manufactured in Spain on a global level, entering the “top ten” of the most popular
models worldwide and once again on the “top ten” of national registrations.
Of special note this year has been the launching of new model over the second half of the year.
During the month of July, there was an incorporation of casual workers from the fifth phase of
apprentices, once their training period had completed.
The company reports that it does not possess nor has it purchased its own shares over fiscal year
2017.
The company staff at the end of 2017 included 4,893 workers; of these, 4,188 had open-ended
contracts and 705 had temporary contracts.
This information is presented in the attached chart:

Staff Ø

2016

2017

Direct Labour Force

3,410

3,559

+4.4%

Indirect Labour Force

1,098

1,147

+4.5%

Total

4,508

4,706

+4.4%

Personnel as of 31 December

2016

2017

Direct Labour Force

3,439

3,745

8.9%

Indirect Labour Force

1,108

1,148

3.6%

Total

4,547

4,893

7,6%
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6. Product
The Volkswagen Polo continues to be the top model in its segment in terms of features, quality,
comfort, safety and customer satisfaction, constantly updated.
These characteristics have served the current model given that it has a major share in the main
markets. Germany, Italy, France, Spain, Great Britain and Turkey make up more than 70% of the total
sales of the Polo that is manufactured in VW Navarra.
Last year, the Volkswagen Polo was the top selling vehicle, on a global level, that was manufactured
in Spain.
After eight years of manufacturing the Volkswagen Polo A05, 2017 brought with it the launching of
the new Volkswagen Polo, the sixth generation of our car. On the past 24th of June, the last Polo A05
was manufactured. Since 2009, over 2.4 million units had been manufactured. This last generation of
the Polo had managed to earn 9 international awards and the greatest rate of annual plant production
(2011).
In addition to Volkswagen Navarra, the new Volkswagen Polo shall also be manufactured in the
factories in Anchieta (Brazil), Uitenhage (South Africa) and Shanghai (China), with Volkswagen Navarra
serving as the “Lead Factory” to coordinate the technical changes with the other production plants
and transferring the leadership of the former Polo version to Volkswagen factory in Pune (India),
which shall continue to manufacture this model.
Numerous modifications have been made to the Polo in this generational change.
The new model is now being manufactured based on the new MQB-A0 modular platform, creating a
vehicle that is 8 cm longer and 7 cm wider. As for design, it has some very dynamic proportions and a
very compact presentation. The front area is more emotional and sporty, with design lines that are
strongly marked on the hood and with sharp points on the wings. The area of the union of the front
bumper is lower on the side, in line with the style of new flatter and more aggressive headlights and
increasing the sense of width. The frontal logo is lower in height and includes the radar sensor and
the bumpers have been completely redesigned. The ceiling line is long and elegant and extends
towards the back until becoming a spoiler. The back part of the car also has some more marked lines,
with more personality and sportier, integrating the rear camera in the rear Volkswagen logo. This
model has 12 tire rim versions including those of 18”. This new Polo has a range of 14 colours, 8 of
which are new. Its interior space has increased by 107 litres, including the new, sportier dashboard
design having the most advanced info-entertainment screen, similar to a Smartphone and with
improved graphics, being the first model to incorporate the Digital Cockpit (FPK).
The vehicle is fully connected to the exterior via the new Car Net systems (navigation services that
permit the connection of a Smartphone and the possibility of seeing Go Pro Hero camera images on
the screen), E-Call (automatic emergency calling) and the keyless Kessy opening system. It also
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includes the Blind Spot system (detection of vehicles in the blind spot), Exit Assist (warning of objects
behind the vehicle when exiting from a parking spot), Drive Profile Selection, Park Assist (detection of
parking spots and driving control to facilitate the manoeuvre), ACC + Front Assist (cruise control and
brake assist), and Pre Crash (pro-active assistance for occupants in the case of possible accident
detection).
The new Polo comes with a range of 6 gasoline engines, MPI and TSI engines and a natural gas engine
made up of 90 CV., with power ranging from 65 CV to 200 CV for the GTI engine. There are different
combinations of manual gearboxes with 5 or 6 velocities or the automatic version with 7 velocities.
The diesel engines offered are of 1.6 litres with 80 CV and 95 CV of power. All of these engines
comply with the EU6 exhaust emissions regulations and include the Start/Stop system and the brake
energy recovery mode.
As for features, it has three versions: Trendline, Comfortline and Highline. The special “Beats” features
are still being offered, which include the Beats sound system, special upholstery and decorative
inserts and decorative bands in the bodywork.

7. Innovation
Innovation continues to be one of the pillars of the production strategy of the Volkswagen
TRANSFORM.FACTORY+ brand, which in 2017 has substituted the previous mach18.FACTORY
strategy. In this new strategy, the innovation activities are framed within the action area called
“Factories of the Future”.
During 2017, at VW Navarre, the new VW Polo was launched and the Innovation Team / Factories of
the Future have continued to promote innovation projects and measures, both with regards to the
launch as well as in the area of the technologies encompassed in the new “Industria 4.0” paradigm.
With regards to the launch, we highlight the new laser welding of the vehicle ceiling and as for the
“Industria 4.0” technologies, the automatic detection of defects through artificial vision in the
Painting workshop and the pilot project of Big Data analysis of massive information on tightening
torques in Assembly.
For a second consecutive year, the VW Navarre workers offer their ideas and proposals within the
framework of the VW Navarre Innovation Award, which held its 2nd Edition. The winning idea on this
occasion, “Calibration cube for manipulators in the body shop workshop”, presented collectively by
Body Shop Processes and Maintenance, was the candidate of VW Navarre for Innovationspreis
Produktion und Logistik 2017 of the VW brand, classifying in third place out of the 15 candidate
measures presented by other factories and central departments of the brand.
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8. 2017 Milestones
2017 was marked with the launch of the new VW270 model. Of the 230.1 million euros of
investments made in 2017, a total of 174.5 million euros corresponded to product investments for
the launch.
Throughout the year, diverse actions have been carried out in the productive process of Volkswagen
Navarra, S.A.U., as well as infrastructure improvements.
●In the General Factory:
As for the general infrastructure actions of the factory, the second phase of adaptation of the
dressing rooms of the engine building and the new logotype of VW Navarre in the façade of the
engine building are of special note. The first charging post has been installed for electric cars and the
installation of the infrastructure networks for natural gas car filling has finalized. A new 8 bar
compressor has also been installed for the paint spray booths. The first phase of substitution of
climate equipment has been carried out with R22 gas and the ISA control system that governs the
main supply of high and average voltage in the factory has been migrated. A new extractions hall has
been created in the Medical Services and the parking of Port 1 has been expanded.
New offices, a break room and an audit room have been added in the Press shop. In the Shablonenbau
area, the construction of new offices and the adaptation of the workshop and measurements area
have been carried out. The reform of restrooms, showers and dressing rooms have taken place in
Engines. Urbanization has been implemented for the building area of the wax preheating installations.
This year, the first Recycling Trophy has been celebrated in investment projects, with the reuse of old
TTS-KTL machines for sending cold water to the air handlers of the new area of Fahrwerk and the
Assembly Commissioning coming in first place.
●In the press shop:
Integration of the dies of the new Polo and stamping of all of the pieces from the PVS has been
carried out. A robot room has been situated in the GT2 automatic load installation in order to increase
the capacity of the door frame parts. Follow-up of the manufacturing of the dies for the VW 216.
New “Páter Noster” warehouse to store the robot claws. Start of construction of a new quality control
hall for the two models and begin the reorganization of offices and rest areas in the central zone of
the warehouse to free up space fro the storage of the VW 216 scaffolds.
A rod in GT2 has been changed and sensors have been installed to measure the force of the pressing
in GT1. Water pipes have substituted the water refrigeration pipes of GT2 and all of the interior
lighting in the press shops has been changed to LED.
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●In the Body Shops:
Automation of the new installations for the VW270 in Warehouse 1B and for the MQB27 in
Warehouse 1C. Completion of the integration of the modifications in Warehouse 1 in the installations
to be reused for the VW270. Manufacturing of the Series 0 pre-series of the VW270 car bodies and
the launch of the first standard car bodies. Closure of the Skid transport technique project in
Warehouses 1, 1B and 1C and of the monorail for storage of the dashboards in Warehouse 1C.
Disassembly of the obsolete installations of VW250. Mechanical integration of the VW216 in the F2
installations.
Adaptation of the new surfaces freed up in N1 following the disassembly of the old installations for
Logistics (grounds, columns, lighting and fluid networks).
Elimination of interferences in transport lines for greater height of the new car bodies for the
manufacture of the VW216.

●In the Painting workshop:
Adjustments of the TTS-KTL process, putties, lacquers and polishes and an optimization of the
automatic applications for the manufacture of the car bodies of Series-0 and the VW270 series.
Provision of sheet metal processing and adaptation of the measures and work positions for the
VW270. Integration and development of a new process for the painting of bi-colour roofs, Digital
Printing in the N2A booth. This new technology permits the application of painting without spraying
using printing heads. Adaptation of the installations and application programming of lacquers for the
painting of VW216 prototypes. Assembly and implementation of the automatic detection tunnel for
micro defects in painted vehicle bodies. Retrofit of the transport and groups of recirculation of the
wax furnaces and integration of the new mechanics of VW270-VW216 bivalent injections in the line 1
of wax.
In N2, adaptation of the fire prevention installation for waxes in the furnaces modified by Processes
and finalization of the fire prevention installations of the new Karola.
For the new Logistics process in N2, the construction of a new platform for the union between N2
and N3 (with four new JIT springs), extension of the unloading canopy in the east zone of N2,
disassembly of the old warehouse of skids, new WCs and rest areas for personnel managing the
supermarkets and general installations for supplier dressing rooms in the north side of N2A.
●In the Engines workshop:
Substitution of spindles in the front dampers pre-assembly machine. Manipulator for the placement
of the stabilizer bar of the sub-frame steering. Adaptation of the door line to the VW 270 model,
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modification of the traceability system to the new configuration of the line and adjustment of all
electronic torque equipment.
●In the Assembly workshop:
A new car bodywork sequencer warehouse, Karola, between painting and assembly, introduction of
18 door lifting beams as well as new routes between the vehicle assembly (warehouse 3) and engine
assembly (warehouse 4) warehouses. Changes in altimetry in the 5 assembly sections to adapt the
ergonomics of the new VW 270 product, as well as adaptation of the traceability system in the 16
PAC checkpoints. Extension of the conveyor belt of the ZP6 in 3 phases, ultimately having a modular
strip of plastic in the 11 final phases. Adjustment of all electronic torque equipment of the new VW
270. Modifications in the wheel assembly installations and in the reworks chain.
Completion of the adaptation of the structure of the 3A section (phase 3), adaptation of the surface in
the H axis for new logistic flows in N2 and new JIT springs of discharge in the northern façade of N3.
Installation of cold system in the new Fahrwerk zone and Commissioning Line, reusing cold water
generation machines from the old TTS/KTL.

●In the Final Revision Workshop:
Modification of the pad lifter of the cover line, new configuration of the checkpoints and workstations
in the ZP lines, unifying the processes in all of the lines.
Construction of a new canopy for the support of the launch of the VW270, where the PDI processes
are carried out, release by manufacture batches and diverse revisions following ZP8.

In Communications Technology during 2017, work has focused on three main programs: ELMO
(Elimination of the Base Relation of the Product based on modules), System adaptation and
infrastructure for the new VW270 model and the renovation of the network electronics.
2017 has been a historic year upon completing the ELMO program, elimination of the module based
relation and implementation of the standard based relation of the Volkswagen group, the TGN
system. Over the month of January, with the start up of the work in progress in SAP the final objective
of ELMO was achieved and all of the factory’s logistics systems were consolidated within the SAP
platform. This system offers the areas of Logistics and Finances better information on the flow of
materials to the line and their stocks, substantially improving the in-house logistics processes.
Furthermore, all of the EDI advance notices for provider expedition are now received from the
standard messaging platform of the Volkswagen Group.
Within the launch of the new VW270 model, a large part of the network and systems infrastructure
was executed, highlighting the following:
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‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Implementation of the system of automatic logistics requests in Bodyworks, winning second
prize in Factory Innovation.
Installation in Bodyworks of the installations fault visualization system.
Implementation of the FIS OPTIMO system and network infrastructure for the new Karola.
Implementation of the ERNA system.
New system of geo-localization of cars in Final Revision, finalist in the Factory Innovation
award.
System and infrastructure for the use of a RFID label as vehicle identification instead of the
bar code label.
Deployment of the network infrastructure needed for the new Warehouse 1C of Bodyworks
and in the other manufacturing warehouses.
Implementation of the SCADA system and the energy management system for the new
Warehouse 1C.
Deployment of WIFI in the Final Revision areas.

The third great project of 2017 was the completion of the execution of the renovation of the network
electronics, begun in 2015 and which incorporates the concepts of MPLS, NAC, IPS and the
virtualization of Firewalls and that has been of great efficiency in protecting the company against
various attacks from global viruses. This year, industrial switches have also been deployed for the
head of each warehouse.
Having initiated the first projects for the launch of the VW216, the FIS production system has been
prepared; a new line of homogenization is being worked on for Warehouse 2 and a necessary network
infrastructure is being prepared for the new installations.
In addition to these three programs, we make special mention of the following:
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Start of the adaptation plan for the new GDPR law
The group’s Information Security Audit was passed.
Start of the first pilot project of the factory, using Big Data technology to improve the
Assembly workshop process.
Renovation of the transfer terminals of the entire factory.
Implementation of payroll sending via email.
Adaptation of systems for new SKD business.
Start-up of the SII project for notifications of VAT to the Tax Agency, legal requirement since
January of 2018.
Installation of the first iPhone terminals using the new MDM platform of the group to begin
the BlackBerry substitution.
Start of deploy of Windows 10 in client equipment.
Increased volume of in-factory mobility devices, especially in Logistics.
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‐

IT-Shopfloor: Virtualization of the SIDIS, SIDAM, Trasys, Sicalis, Perceptron system services
and increase in the number of material sequence assurances to the line with the FAS-ASSEIN
system.

Volkswagen Navarre received the ITelNa 2017 Impulso Telecomunicaciones en Navarra award for its
professional contribution to engineers in telecommunications and for its collaboration with the UPNA
in this area.

In the Logistics Department the following actions are of special note:
‐

Designed the containers for the manufacturing of the VW270 placing 3 checkpoints (Hawkeye), which, via artificial vision, assures that he dimensions are correct and containers with
optimal dimensions for specific parts and providers.

‐

Have adapted all logistics processes to the new model. In Bodyworks, have introduced a new
supply technique based on the Routenzug (supply by routes), which has allowed for the power
to supply the lines of Warehouse 1B and N1C without forklifts, improving security. Have
optimized the material request system by having the robots themselves request the
repositioning of the parts, and have organized the Bodyworks warehouses with internal
storage. In Engines, have developed a new lay-out for the logistics area and in Assembly, have
adapted the supermarket.

‐

As for the end of series of the Polo A05, work has been carried out on the achievement of the
performance program, implementing measures such as transport contract optimization, the
redesign of some logistics processes or the introduction of various AGV (automatically guided
vehicles). Processes in Bodyworks, Engines and the supermarket in Warehouse 2 have been
automated and in Frontend supply.

‐

There has been 100% compliance with the objective of program
(Wochenprogrammtreue) within the established period, being first within the brand.

‐

Action points have been established until 2025, within the Transform Factory +.
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In the Quality Department:
At Volkswagen Navarra, S.A. quality continues to be one of its main references. The following actions
should be noted, with regards to quality, when complying with the objectives established by the VW
Consortium, which has been marked by the launch of the VW270 and the preparation of the VW216.
‐

In the Quality Series: participation in the integration and qualification process of the bodywork
workshop. Process audits for the Quality Consortium in Bodywork, Painting, Engines and Final
Revision. Achievement of the release of corrosion with a high degree of compliance. Release
of the screwed bodywork unions and implementation of laser welding in the roof with
galvanized sides. Participation in the release process in cars by batches. Implementation of the
pilot test of 20kms in 3,500 cars as an introduction to the German market. Implementation of
electronic guidelines in the DKA’s (fast audits) for the different productive process points and
use of virtual reality to manage training on the new model. Creation of the “Anlaufstatus”,
weekly quality report of the overall process. Management of blocks of parts through the FISeQS system. Implementation of the ERNA system to record reworks in cars. Certification of
ISO standard 9001:2015.

‐

In Vehicle Analysis: tests of the VW 270 in Arizona and Finland. Coordination with good results
on the leak testing. Increased capacity of the Measurement Room. Meeting of MB&Cubing
auditors (“Ringvergleich”) in early November. Increase in the Technology and Materials
laboratory and the new Calibration Room. Weatherproof tests for the VW270. Considerable
increase in tests performed. Concept analysis of the VW216. New tools for the analysis of
noise. Audits of the finished car on over 630 vehicles.

‐

Execution of the launch audits (A.P.A.) on the VW270 and VW216.

‐

There has been continued positive development in customer claims regarding the Polo A05
GP.

‐

Quality residents in Wolfsburg for the follow-up of the launch of the VW270 and for the
preparation of the VW216 projects.

‐

Holding of meetings and congresses with providers: in Pamplona and Wolfsburg (40 Top-Q),
stay in KDK for support, Sitzetag in Wolfsburg in February and Pamplona in August, quarterly
meetings of Top Q Proveedores Chapa VW270, 50 Lieferantenreviews of the VW270 project
and 9 of the VW216, 4 Teiletisch, Viko South African weekly seminar, Lieferantentag on
VW216 project preparation.

‐

QPN-Integral with the implementation of 64 follow-ups on the VW270 and 54 on the VW216.

‐

Approximately 7,000 homologations.
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‐

Workshops and meetings with other factories of the Consortium: in Wolfsburg (4KAK-Q
Kaufteile), in Sweden (Internationale Kaufteilleiter-Tagung)

‐

Holding a work meeting on quality in March with 3 factories from the Volkswagen Group
(Wolfsburg, Brazil and South Africa) to consider quality aspects of the VW270, of the future
VW216 and of the MQB27 modular platform, and to share synergies and good practices.

‐

Holding of the VIII conference of the Lead Factory in November, presenting the launch of the
new Volkswagen Polo by the three production plants, Volkswagen Navarre, Uitenhage (South
Africa) and Anchieta (Brazil).

9. Economic information
In 2017, Volkswagen Navarra, S.A. achieved a sales volume of 244,127 vehicles, a considerably lower
volume than that from the prior year, due to the launch of the new model.
Thus, the account of profits and losses revealed after tax profits of 55.9 million euros, 18.6 million
less than those of the previous year, due mainly to the increase in amortisation in HBI. Of the business
volume, 94% of the income came from the sale of cars and 6% from the sale of components, parts
and other sales.
The gross cash-flow generated in the fiscal year reached 120.5 million euros as compared to 124.3
from the previous year.
During 2017, the investment volume rose to 230.1 million euros, as compared to 165.8 million in
2016. The increased investment effort focused on the preparation of the factory for the new VW270
model.
On the other hand, as described in Note 16 of the Informative Report from fiscal year 2017, the mean
payment period to providers was 28 days.
Throughout 2017 a set of multi-disciplinary initiatives have been used that were founded on team
work in order to optimize manufacturing costs of the Polo.
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10. Subsequent events
No relevant subsequent events have taken place following the close of the fiscal year.

11. Perspectives
It is anticipated that the global economy shall decrease its growth in 2018 and that global demand of
vehicles shall progress at a slower and less equal manner. Risks are anticipated due to protectionist
trends, financial market turbulence, structural deficits and geopolitical tension. Thus, a slightly weaker
dynamic is expected for the advanced economies as well as for the emerging markets. Higher growth
rates are expected for the emerging economies in Asia.
In Western Europe, a decrease in growth is expected with slightly lower sales volumes, caused by
structural problems and uncertainty from the Brexit negotiations as well as a decrease in Central
Europe and a stabilization in Eastern Europe, assuming that the conflict between the Ukraine and
Russia does not reoccur. It is likely that growth in Russia shall continue after last year’s upturn. In
Germany, somewhat lower economic growth is expected, with a stable labour market situation and a
similar tourism level as that of the past year. In France, a slight increase in sales is anticipated and in
Italy and Spain, recovery is expected to continue.
Global activity in the U.S. is expected to continue to rise with increases in the interest rate and
supportive tax measures, while demand for automobiles is expected to be slightly less than that of
the previous year, while continuing with the increasing trend in SUV models. At the same time, a
decrease is anticipated in Canada and stability is expected in Mexico. In South America, it is
anticipated that Brazil and Argentina shall continue to grow despite the continued high inflation rates
in the latter. The demand for vehicles is expected to be greater in the coming year although
dependency on the demand for raw materials is high and protectionist trends shall likely continue
with restrictions on vehicle importations.
Over the coming years, the Asian markets shall continue with their growth, being especially high in
India and China, where automobile sales shall increase due to the growing demand for individual
mobility. In Japan, these sales are expected to decrease.
The Volkswagen Group predicts increased demand for automobiles in 2017, taking on risks and
identifying opportunities. Thanks to its wide range of brands, products, technologies, pioneer services
and its increasing presence in all of the major world markets, the VW Group is well prepared for future
challenges to the mobility business and the heterogeneous conditions of the regional markets. Having
a good competitive positioning across the globe, the Group’s goal is to offer each client the mobility
and innovations that they need and to thereby ensure long term success.
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The expectations of Volkswagen Navarra, S.A. are mainly marked by the introduction for the first time
of a second model in 2019 and by the commitment to continue working on the implementation of the
new strategy of the Volkswagen Group, which, until 2025, includes the achievement of 4 major
objectives: the digital integration of the factory and the car, efficiency as a guarantee for the future,
sustainable mobility and a globally connected human team.
We also hope, like last year, to continue to increase the quality and profitability of our products as
well as the trust that our customers place in us.

12. Non-financial information.
12.1. Business model
12.1.1. Description of value generation
The main industrial activity of Volkswagen Navarre focuses on the manufacture of the Volkswagen
Polo model, whose price establishment is carried out based on a method of cost-plus pricing,
calculated based on budget costs with earnings target for the Navarre factory of 2.5% in terms of the
Full Cost Mark Up (Cost-Plus Price), in line with market conditions. In addition, price regularisation is
carried out with Volkswagen AG such that Volkswagen Navarre obtains a normal market return for its
manufacturing activities.
Value generation is a broad concept that goes beyond the economic; therefore, Volkswagen Navarre
actively and voluntarily contributes to social, economic and environmental improvements. All of this,
with the goal of improving the company’s competitive situation and added value, thereby reaching
employees, customers, local communities, the environment and the entire Navarre society in general.

12.1.2. Impact of trends
The automobile industry is immersed in a revolutionary change to which car manufacturers such as
Volkswagen Navarre should respond with firm strategies for the future that will ensure sustainability.
Autonomous driving, e-mobility, interconnected cars, the digital transformation, and environmental
demands are marking the path for future investments. This scenario, together with the global
economy perspectives (see point 11), demand that automobile manufacturing be capable of adapting
and offering responses. The Volkswagen Group responds to these new expectations through the
TRANSFORM 2025+ strategy, which includes the TRANSFORM.FACTORY+ program in which
Volkswagen Navarre currently works.
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At the same time, in response to an ever-changing demand that demands maximum flexibility, the
Volkswagen Group relies on a modular strategy. In Volkswagen Navarre, a transversal modular
platform (MQB) has been implemented in order to achieve synergies within the Volkswagen Group.
In response to these new market demands and as a part of the digital transformation and modularity
strategy, in 2017, Volkswagen Navarre launched the new generation of the Polo model (VW270). All
of this while ensuring its financial sustainability with positive results of 56 million euros, compliance
with ambitious environmental objectives, social advances and ensured compliance with regulations.

12.1.3. Sustainability policies
Volkswagen Navarra works daily for the company’s sustainability, seeking economic profitability while
attempting to minimize environmental impact and to involve the communities where it is present.
Together with the economic indicators, the perception of the interest groups is a decisive factor in the
company’s success. Volkswagen Navarre is aware of its impact on the environment and the
importance of knowing and complying with the needs and expectations of employees, customers,
providers, other Group companies, shareholders, educational entities in R&D&i, institutions and
society in general. For this, it ensures fluid and transparent dialogue with these interest groups so as
to make them aware of common objectives.
This report, framed within the requirements of the Volkswagen Group’s annual report, is based on a
description of the policies applied by Volkswagen Navarre in terms of non-financial sustainability:
environmental, social, respect for human rights and compliance with regulations. The application of
these procedures ensures the company’s commitment in these areas while suggesting prevention
against any type of risk.

12.2. Environmental issues
12.2.1. Environmental policy
Environmental activities make up one of the most important pillars of the corporate social
responsibility strategy of Volkswagen Navarre and are based on the company’s environmental and
energy policy.
The implementation of this policy is carried out through the Environmental and Energy Management
System in accordance with ISO standards 14001 and 50001. With it, the environmental impact of the
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company activity is assessed in order to consistently reduce it. The greatest environmental impact
corresponds to the productive process emissions.
Over 2017, the corresponding follow-up audits were successfully passed. The points of the new ISO
standard 14001 have also been expanded upon: leadership, organization context (interested parties
and relevant internal and external issues), opportunities and environmental risks.

12.2.2. Environmental activities
Investments in the environmental area have resulted in 1.9 million euros, related to protection against
atmospheric contamination through energy savings.
The most important section of investments corresponds to the continuation of the project on the
changing of the volatile organic compound incinerators in the Painting workshop, as it brought with it
relevant savings in the consumption of gas and electricity, thereby reducing CO2 emissions.
The disassembly of the former treatment plant and the adaptation of the space have also required a
major investment, as well as a change in equipment with R22 cooling gas, the centralization and
optimization of the boilers, the change to LEDs in some areas of the Final Revision workshop and the
completion of the project to adapt the installations to the substitution from the R134 cooling gas
(with potential greenhouse effect ) in the vehicles to R1234yF (without potential greenhouse effect),
in the Assembly workshop.
Within the set of investments, there is an area that is annually devoted to the so-called Think Blue.
Factory projects. These are projects whose justification is exclusively environmental in nature. In
2017, the following actions have been carried out: substitution of lighting for LED in the maintenance
area of the Bodywork workshop and inside the presses, study of LED lighting in the exterior areas,
installation of three electric container analysers, biodiversity project and introduction of irrigation in
the Think Blue. Factory forest in the testing track.

At Volkswagen Navarre, environmental risks are controlled for using a computerized risk management
tool. This system includes, among others, the most relevant environmental risks, evaluating and
recording their management.

12.2.3. Use of energy, water, waste, CO2 and emissions.
Within the company’s policy, the continued reduction of environmental impact from the production
activity of Volkswagen Navarre is a main effort.
The Think Blue. Factory. Strategy began within the framework of the Volkswagen brand in 2010 with
the objective of a reduction by 25% of environmental impact between 2010 and 2018, and it
continues to be implemented, having achieved a total reduction of 17.7% at the close of 2017.
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The indicators making up the strategy include: energy consumption, water, CO2 emissions, volatile
organic compound emissions and waste that is taken to landfills.
Furthermore, the staff continues to be trained on good practices, considering both the theoretical and
the practical aspects of each of the five environmental aspects making up the Think Blue. Factory
strategy.

12.3. Social issues
12.3.1. Equal opportunities
Equal opportunities and treatment are the fundamental pillars of just and sincere treatment without
prejudice. The Volkswagen Group promotes cooperation with respect, based on a collaborative,
diverse and tolerant spirit. In this way, maximum levels of productivity, competitiveness, innovative
capacity, creativity and efficiency are ensured.
Volkswagen Navarre offers the same opportunities to all. It does not discriminate against anyone and
does not tolerate discrimination based on ethnicity, nationality, gender, religion, philosophy, age,
disability, sexual orientation, skin colour, political orientation, social origin or any other aspect that is
protected by the law. This is diversity in practice, actively supporting integration and creating an
environment that promotes the individuality of each individual in the best interest of the company. As
a basic principle, the selection, hiring and promotion of employees is based on their qualifications and
skills.
Gender equality is supported in the “Equality Agreement” that was signed by Volkswagen Navarre in
2011 to ensure gender equality in access to employment, promotion and training, payment,
communication and reconciliation. This Equality Plan takes into consideration the measures regarding
these topics which have been agreed upon in the headquarters of the European Committee of the
Volkswagen Group and they shall be adapted to that included in the Spanish labour law and the
Collective Agreement of Volkswagen Navarre.
The agreement also includes the prevention of sexual or gender-based harassment and established an
action protocol for these cases.
To carry out follow up of this Equality Plan, an Equality Commission has been created, made up of
representatives of the management of Volkswagen Navarre and the employee representatives.
Volkswagen Navarre has participated in a campaign organized by the Volkswagen Group against
racism, supporting the United Nations initiative of International Weeks against Racism from the 13th
to the 26th of March of 2017.
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12.3.2. Implementation of the agreements of the International
Labor Organization
In 2002, Volkswagen AG and the Global Committee of the Volkswagen Group agreed to a declaration
on the fundamental principles and rights of the Group, based on the relevant regulations of the
International Labor Organization.
Compliance with these objectives is suspended in response to both the legal frameworks of the
corresponding centres and countries as well as their specific characteristics. These make up the basis
of the business policies of the Volkswagen Group.

12.3.3. Work conditions
Work conditions are regulated by the Collective Agreement of Volkswagen Navarre, published in the
Navarre Registry of Collective Labour Conventions and Agreements from the 17th of December of
2013.
This Collective Agreement is the result of negotiations carried out by the Company Committee and
the Company Management and consists of the expression of the agreement that was freely adopted
by them in virtue of its collective autonomy. With this Agreement, the work and productivity
conditions are regulated. As for anything that is not regulated in the Collective Agreement, the
Workers Statute and other Spanish laws and regulations shall be applicable.

12.3.4. Employee rights
12.3.4.1.

The right to be heard

Volkswagen Navarre wishes for its employees to carry out their work with enthusiasm, demonstrating
commitment and team spirit while also offering their experience. In exchange, the company fosters a
good working environment and offers attractive opportunities for professional development. In
addition to listening to employee opinions and constructive criticism, it actively involves employees in
order to improve the processes and ensure quality.
One tool that is used for this proposal throughout the Group is the employee opinion survey (Opinion
Barometer). Volkswagen uses this standardized employee survey for the entire Group in order to
obtain regular comments on employee satisfaction and, to thereby determine the degree to which the
company has complied with its objective of being an attractive employer. The survey also assists to
systematically identify the scope of the improvements and to signal the areas where managers should
apply measures within their organizational departments.
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In 2017, staff participation was 53%, higher than that of the previous year, with a satisfaction rate of
75.1% (previously 72.2%).
It also promoted participation in order to carry out ongoing improvements in the production systems.
All of the brands of vehicles of the Group use standardized production systems that are constantly
being developed with employee contributions.
The suggestions program is another important tool for encouraging employee participation. This
program allows employees to contribute their creativity, knowledge and initiative and to assume
responsibility for the improvement of productive processes. In 2017, over 5,503 ideas were
presented, allowing the company to save 1.8 million euros. This also contributed to the improved
health and safety in the Volkswagen workplace and helped to achieve the goals of Think Blue.
Factory.
This year, thanks to a suggestion presented in the Bodywork area, the Trophy 2017 award for best
idea of the year was won, granted by the Volkswagen Group.
12.3.4.2.

The right to be informed

During 2017, there has been a greater stress on the improvement and consolidation of the distinct
communication channels of Volkswagen Navarre, in order to offer (both internally and externally)
clear, up close and precise communication.
Thus, 46 Polo Zoom weekly bulletin issues have been published, 80 staff announcements, 37 press
releases, 4 A Punto journal issues and over 90 entries in the www.volkswagen-navarra.es website.
Within this exercise, special relevance is offered to the updating of the ‘App’ developed by
Volkswagen Navarre for workers and the information regarding the launch of the new Volkswagen
Polo. Of the novelties are: the presentation of suggestions, access to the notifications content or
reading of the PDF documents.
The presentation of the new Volkswagen Polo to society has marked three large events over 2017:




Worldwide presentation in Berlín (16th of June), before 400 journalists from across the world
and with representation of Volkswagen Navarre.
Presentation in Pamplona (9th of September) in Baluarte, where approximately 4,000 individuals
learned the details of the new car and enjoyed an event that was full of activities.
Dynamic presentation for Spain held in the Volkswagen Navarre facilities (14, 15 and 16 of
November) with 90 representatives of the media and car fleets participated, getting to know
the installations and driving a new car.
12.3.4.3.

Development and training

The 5th anniversary of the Volkswagen Academy training centre was celebrated last March.
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The incorporation of 66 students in the IV Promotion of the Professional Training Specialization
Program makes Volkswagen Navarre a leader of the Professional training offer in the private sector.
Upon completion of this training, some students had the opportunity to go on to form a part of the
group of 21 youth that began the VI Apprentice Program of Volkswagen Navarre. This specialization
program, upon completion of the test of the German Chamber of Commerce (AHK), allows for the
obtaining of the dual degree, Spanish and German, for students in training. Of the 102 students that
have completed the four editions of the program, 71 have joined the staff of Volkswagen Navarre.
Once again, Volkswagen Navarre has received the Best Apprentice Award, in an event celebrating the
best apprentices from the Volkswagen Group factory and which is now in its 17th edition.
It has also participated in the Navarre Strategic Professional Training Plan and has held courses for
over 30 educators in professional training centres on aspects related to the new Volkswagen Polo.
In 2017, the V SAP / ERP Masters in Consultancy was held, in collaboration with the Navarre Chamber,
including SAP certification and with paid company apprenticeships.
In 2017 the Masters in Production Management continues to be offered in companies of the
automotive sector, organized collectively by the Volkswagen Academy Navarre and the School of
Engineers of the Universidad de Navarra in San Sebastián (Tecnun). This year marks the 4th edition.
Within the “Academia 4.0” program, different training programs have been carried out in digital
competencies.
The training of the employment plan has been carried out for the launch of the new Volkswagen Polo
(VW270) with a total of 23,120 hours.
Completion of the first FBQ course, degree in leadership for staff personnel in Volkswagen Navarre.
Data referring to the training is presented in the following chart:

2016

2017

Total no. of participants

10,782

15,665

+45.3%

Nº de horas taught

167,742

200,440

+19.5%

Courses

1,621

2,172

+33.9%

Hours of training per worker

37,2

42,8

+14.9%
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12.3.5. Social dialogue and union rights
The company recognizes the fundamental right of all workers to form unions and representative
organisms and to be affiliated with the same. Volkswagen and the unions or worker representations
collaborate openly in order to resolve potential conflicts in a constructive manner, via cooperation.
Recognition of the Union Sections is included in the Collective Agreement of Volkswagen Navarra, S.
A. (articles 146 to 155), in the Organic Law of Trade Union Freedom and in the Workers’ Statute.
The Company Committee of Volkswagen Navarre consists of 29 members from the different union
sections of the factory, of which, 24 are members of the Association of Specialists and Non-Qualified
and 5 are from the Association of Technicians and Clerical Workers.
The current Committee was elected in the union elections held on the 1st of April of 2015, with the
members being distributed as follows: 11 UGT, 7 CC.OO., 4 LAB, 4 CGT, 2 ELA and 1 CGC.
Of the 4,352 workers that were called to the urns, 3,885 voted, 89.27%, as compared to 88.94% in the
elections held in 2011.

12.3.6. Workplace health and safety
In 2017, the department of Workplace Safety has continued its activity that is devoted to ensuring
and improving the conditions of safety, ergonomics and industrial hygiene throughout the staff of
Volkswagen Navarre. Through the application of diverse prevention management tools available
(research on accidents, risk statements, safety visits, audits of personal and work protective
equipment, complaint management, maintenance of the system of work position rotations in
production, the execution of specific ergonomic studies, coordination of preventive activities with
providers, control and follow-up of works) the risk assessment of the distinct work positions has been
maintained updated.
This activity has been reinforced this year through the launching of the new Volkswagen Polo, as it
has been necessary to configure and assess all of the defined work positions.
Along these same lines, compliance with the required regulations has been necessary and work has
been carried out in the non-conformities or defects in the new installations and auxiliary measures
have been introduced throughout the year of 2017.
The staff has undergone training activities on workplace risk prevention in order to improve their
prevention qualifications with the continued participation of 1,137 workers (previous year, 870), in
over 150 events (previous year, 90).
Throughout 2017, a new worker uniform has been introduced, according to the standardisation
criteria established from the Volkswagen Group.
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Medical examinations were carried out on 2,587 workers, following protocols intended for health
monitoring and 28,774 care procedures. The company’s medical service has relocated 173 operators
as a result of the medical visits.
In October of 2017, the former ambulance service was substituted by a new Volkswagen Crafter
having electro-medical materials, so as to attend to any type of emergency that may occur along with
the personnel from the medical department and the trained firefighters.

12.3.7. Due diligence in local communities
12.3.7.1.

Internal community (employees)

For yet another year, Volkswagen Navarre offers social benefits to its workers such as: dining services,
where food costs are subsidized in part by the company; financing to the Social Fund, which manages
economic assistance to employees in the area of health; industrial washing of work uniforms; support
to the collective transport service which in 2017 began to be optimized with new improvement
measures through a sustainable mobility plan; medical services, with specialized medicine and
medical examinations for employees.
Since 2017, the payroll delivery service has been updated and improved, adding the possibility of
accessing the same through email. This change offers the following advantages: reduced time of the
procedure, increased security in the protection of data and more respective of the environment.
Local business offers and promotions continue to be expanded for employees and are published on
the company’s Intranet, exceeding 130 this year.
In 2017 the offer of vehicle leasing services for all employees increased with four versions of the new
Volkswagen Polo and three models of the Volkswagen brand: Touran, Passat and Tiguan.
The fifth edition of the anniversary acts are celebrated, with a party for the recognition of the oldest
workers and those celebrating 25 and 35 years in the company.
For another year, the nativity scene contest was held in the workshops and other departments and
organized visits were held for employees and family members.
12.3.7.2.

External community

In line with the commitment of the Volkswagen Group with the Global Compact of the United
Nations, which seeks to promote the social commitment of the companies, Volkswagen Navarre has
implemented actions in the areas of Corporate Social Responsibility in order to protect and develop
the communities where it is located.
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Volkswagen Navarre actively participates in solidarity projects as well as in the promotion of sports
and culture in the Navarre society, through diverse activities. Under the brand Volkswagen Navarra
Solidaria, the factory has been developing actions over the past years to support community entities.
The fourth edition of the Marcha Ciclista Volkswagen Navarra Solidaria was held, collecting 40,000 €
for the ADANO association and the “Children against Cancer” project of the Clínica Universitaria de
Navarra.
The 3rd edition of the “Your solidarity project” has been held, consisting of electing solidarity projects
from those presented by the workers, to be carried out in the autonomous community and promoted
by non-profit foundations or entities. From the projects, six were selected by vote and were awarded
5,000 euros each, collectively provided by the Company Committee and Volkswagen Navarra.
Sponsorship of the Company Professorship Volkswagen Navarre-Universidad de Navarra has
continued, permitting a work forum that promotes quality and development of research projects of
common interest.
Volkswagen Navarre contributes to the Fundación Miguel Induráin, whose objective is to promote and
develop high performance sports in Navarre.
In four points at the entry of the Volkswagen Navarre installations, the collection continues for the
“Caps for a new life” project, which helps children with health problems.
In addition, support continues for the Asociación Tu Salario Solidario, founded in 1998, and consisting
of and financed mainly by workers at Volkswagen Navarre and sympathizers, who annually donate
one day’s salary to the financing of humanitarian projects, preferably in developing countries. Tu
Salario Solidario (Your Solidary Salary), financed five projects in 2017: in Venezuela (water supply to
the Sagrada Familia education department), in Peru (strengthening of local capacities in the upper
zone of the Andes), in Cameroon (improving the water supply of the Ebomé Hospital), in the Ivory
Coast (water supply) and in Ghana (rehabilitation and therapy of the psychologically ill and ex-drug
addicts) thereby contributing to the development of said countries.
The donation of 12 cars and 12 robots from the Bodywork department has been made to professional
training centres for student training.
Volkswagen Navarra sponsors the Fundación Parque Polo, also economically supported by: the
Navarre government, the Pamplona city hall, the Fundación Caja Navarra, Volkswagen Group España
Distribución, Commonwealth of the Pamplona Region, Erro y Eugui, Unipresalud, Igoa y Patxi, Grupo
SESÉ and Plásticos Tolosa. The main activity of the foundation is directed at driver’s education of
Navarre students. Since its creation 18 years ago, more than 145,000 children have passed through its
installations and have learned the keys to driver’s education through theoretical and practical training.
A total of 7,688 individuals have carried out activities in the Parque Polo in 2017. In addition to its
activities for school children, the Parque Polo, during the month of September of 2017, was home to
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the fourth edition of the “We move together” event, directed to individuals with disabilities. In this
edition, more than 440 people from 21 special education centres in Navarre participated.
Since its unveiling in late 2016, the Bulletin of Corporate Social Responsibility of Volkswagen Navarre
was consolidated in 2017 with three new issues.

12.4. Issues regarding good governance and human rights
Compliance with regulations and with human rights ensures integrity, transparency and honesty.
These are decisive aspects in order to generate credibility and confidence in the company’s interest
groups.
The Volkswagen Group promotes sustainable management and fair business practices. Therefore,
Volkswagen Navarre has mechanisms that help to protect its reputation and prevent any type of
corruption or bribery activities.

12.4.1. Department of Legal Services and Good Governance
In the legal scope, in 2017, Volkswagen Navarre created the department of Legal Services and Good
Governance, which integrates the previous organizational units of Legal Services and Good
Governance, Regulational Compliance and Risk Management (GRC)
The integration of these disciplines helps ensure that the organization remains stable and progresses
towards its objectives, to be loyal to its acquired commitments, be they legal or voluntary. In one
single department, the reactive approach of “Legal Services” has been combined with the legal
problems arising on a daily basis, along with the preventive approach and regulational control of
“GRC”.
The company complies with its legal obligations in the economic area and has clearly defined criteria
of good governance. For this, it conducts transparent practices focused on its interest groups and
carries out economic control activities (investment planning, production costs) that allow it to
determine the level of profitability of its daily and future activities.

12.4.2. Audit, Compliance and Good Governance Committee
(CACBG)
This Commission (CACBG) was created by mandate of the Board of Directors and for compliance with
the regulations of public interest entities, on 02.01.2017. It is made up of 3 of the 6 members of the
Board of Directors: Dr. Josep Piqué (President), Dr. Stephan Piëch and Mr. Mark Philip Porsche.
Of its functions, the following are of special note:
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Informing the General Board of Shareholders regarding issues of its competence and, especially,
on the results of the audit.

To inform, supervise and present recommendations to the Board of Directors on financial
information.

To supervise risk management systems and the internal audit.

The hiring of external accounts auditors, ensuring their independence.

To issue an annual report in which it presents an opinion on the independence of the accounts
auditors or audit companies.
During 2017, this commission (CACBG) met on 5 occasions.

12.4.3. Code of Conduct
The Code of Conduct of the Volkswagen Group, published in December of 2012, was updated and
extended in 2017, adapting its content to the new commitments and challenges derived from the
regulatory framework with a very didactic approach that is geared to helping to understand the
principals and values of the Volkswagen Group. Volkswagen Navarre has adapted the content of its
own applicable regulations and idiosyncrasies and has done so publically to its employees, clients,
business partners, providers and society in general, through its publication over the intranet and
website of Volkswagen Navarre.
The Code of Conduct highlights the responsibility of the employees of Volkswagen Navarre as
members of society as well as commercial partners and in their workplace.
The in-person training module on good governance has been consolidated within the new employee
Reception Plan. In 2017, a total of 1,032 workers participated.

12.4.4. Anti-corruption Guide
The Anti-corruption Guide published in 2014 is committed, along with the Code of Conduct, to
renewing the commitment with essential values such as righteousness, sustainability and cooperation
capacity.
This guide, based on regulations of the Volkswagen Group, inform on the measures and procedures
that protect the company against corruption and that prohibit the undue influencing of one’s own
behaviour or that of a business partner.

12.4.5. Complaint management
The company’s policy of complaint management has been modified, adapting it to the Spanish
framework according to the ethical principals of the Volkswagen Group on protection of the
complainant, justice and trust.
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In the department of Risk Management, specialized organisms have been established for the handling
of the communication of irregularities or malpractice: an Analysis Office, an Analysis Committee and a
Disciplinary Committee.
Informants may opt for different routes to make their notification, either directly to the Analysis
Office through the channel of internal complaints or through the new trustworthy mediator,
designated by the Board of Directors of Volkswagen Navarre (“Ombudsman”) effective as of 1
September of 2017 in order to strengthen and align the system with the Spanish law. All information
regarding the complaint channels is available on the website or via the Volkswagen Navarre intranet.
The procedure of the complaints management system is regulated via internal standard “CG 80.00
System of communication of irregularities/complaint channels of Volkswagen Navarre”, published in
2017.

12.4.6. Criminal Prevention Committee
Compliance with the requirements of the Spanish Criminal Code, Volkswagen Navarre continues with
the development and follow-up of a Criminal Prevention Model that began its implementation in
2015 with the completion of the first criminal risk assessments and the creation of a Criminal
Prevention Committee, as a support organism in the follow-up of the model.
The GRC department carries out the promotion, coordination and advising of all regarding the
Criminal Prevention Model and makes regular reports to the Audit, Compliance and Good Governance
Committee (CACBG) of the Board of Directors of Volkswagen Navarre, which is responsible for the
legal functions of model supervision.
A second analysis was carried out on criminal risks in 2017 with all departments of the organization
that may be susceptible to committing crimes in their own benefit. The analysis methodology has
been modified, placing the focus on due control. As a result of these works, an individualized risk
assessment was created and a system of management of controls and measures for the prevention of
corporate crimes.

12.4.7. Risk management system
In an ever changing economic, legal and social context, one of the basic pillars of Volkswagen Navarre
is responsible management of risks in daily activity, be they strategic, operational or regulatory.
A risk management model has been created which systematically covers all departments and
activities of the company, including some of the non-financial aspects (environmental or social) that
are included in this report.
Since 2013, every year, the departments and areas of the factory are involved in a periodic process
that aims to identify and assess the risks affecting the company, and to record the measures of risk
management and the control activities existing to prevent and mitigate risks. This information is
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included in a standard tool of risk management. The purpose of this process is to offer the Executive
Committee, the company’s Board of Directors and the Volkswagen Group, a transparent image of the
risks that may affect the operating activities, reporting and company strategies. This process is
regulated by the publication of standard “CG 70.53. Risk management and systematics of internal
control in Volkswagen Navarre”
Furthermore, in 2017, the risk management procedure has provided key justification for the
recertification of ISO standard 9001:2015 which frames the quality management system of
Volkswagen Navarre.

12.4.8. Human rights
One of the chapters of the Code of Conduct (point 12.4.3.) highlights the respect for and compliance
with Human Rights and the commitment to the Universal Declaration of Human Rights adopted by
the United Nations and the European Convention for the Protection of Human Rights and
Fundamental Freedoms.
Volkswagen Navarre is covered by the legal framework of the Volkswagen Group and it respects,
protects and promotes the current regulations regarding the protection of Human Rights and of
childhood as fundamental and universal premises. Volkswagen Navarre rejects any use of child
exploitation, forced or compulsory labour, as well as any form of modern slavery and human
trafficking.
This applies not only to the collaboration within the company but also is relevant with regards to the
behaviour or and for the company’s business partners.
If any employee detects indicators of a violation of human rights in their work area, they are obligated
to report these suspicions through the different channels of Complaint Management (point 12.4.5.)

12.5. Indicators
Royal Decree-Law 18/2017 mentions distinct standards that the company may use in order to
structure its non-financial information. Volkswagen Navarre has selected some of the indicators from
the CII-FESG Integrated Chart of Indicators of the integrated information model of the Spanish
Association of Accounting and Company Administration (AECA) and others for internal use, in order to
inform in a more understandable and comparable manner regarding environmental, social and
compliance and good corporate governance aspects.
These indicators are quantitative in order to strengthen comparison and to measure performance,
comparing the rates from 2017 to those of 2016.
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These non-financial indicators are complementary to the economic data that was collected in this
management report, offering a more global view of the company’s sustainability.
Environmental indicators:
2016

2017

%

Energy (KWh/car)

964

1,167

+21,1%

CO2 emissions (kg/car)

107

111

+3,7%

Solvent emissions (kg/car)

1.31

1.59

+21,4%

Water (m3/car)

1.31

1.31

+0,0%

Landfill waste (kg/car)

4.75

4.82

+1,5%

296,799

244,127

-17,7%

Annual production

Social indicators:
2016

2017

4,547

4,893

+7.6%

558

636

+14%

Labour stability (permanent contracts)

3,986

4,188

+5.1%

Absenteeism (days absent)

70,444

75,514

+7.2%

145

346

+138.6%

2016

2017

Employees
Gender diversity (women)

Net creation of employment
(employees)

%

Indicators of corporate governance:
%

Board of Directors

3

6

+100%

Executive Committee

7

8

+14.3%

Commission of Audits, Compliance
and Good Governance (CACBG)

0

4

---
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In Compliance with Article 253 of the Capital Companies Law, the directors of the Company have
formulated the annual accounts, including the balance sheet, profits and losses accounts, informative
report and the preceding management report, corresponding to fiscal year 2017, identified with the
signature of the Board Secretary.
The described documents shall be subject to the approval of the General Ordinary Board of company
shareholders.
In Compliance with Article 253.2 of the Capital Companies Law, and in proof of conformity, all
company directors underwrite the referred documents via this document.
In Wolfsburg (Alemania), Viena (Austria), Salzburg (Austria), Pamplona and Martorell (Barcelona), on
the 22nd of February of 2018.

Dr. F.J. García Sanz

Dr. J. Piqué Camps

E. Sáenz Grijalba

M.P. Porsche

L. Comas Martínez de Tejada

Dr. S.M.Piëch

For identification of documents, Luis Comas Martínez de Tejada, Secretary.
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